%/ rG ngo;-f’jtjr%l beauty

Annual Report 2011




Mission

Statement

A (s OR G

Natural Beauty is dedicated to cultivate our staff, customers, students and
franchisees to appreciate our education, products and services, which are
made by the love and kindness of our founder, Dr. Tsai Yen-Pin, who made
modern ladies beautiful, confident and wealthy.
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Financial Highlights

B2

Selected Financial Data BEHERE FY2007 FY2008 FY2009 FY2010 FY2011
HK$'000 (except per share data)  F 38 7t (8 R BB ) —EERtE ZEENE ZEENE 225 | ZB--F

BREE BHREE BBEE BBEE BBREE
Revenue A 450,147 592,701 538,092 485,389 591,295
Cost of sales & R A 77,573 86,102 122,913 130,007 122,162
Gross profit 7 372,574 506,599 415,179 355,382 469,133
Operating profit BERA 208,315 308,477 186,753 75,848 173,647
Profit for the year REERF 178,781 238,579 143,923 30,710 115,172
Dividends A% # 300,000 167,053 150,139 160,168 170,179
EPS - basic FREMN-EX $0.0890 $0.1190 $0.0750 $0.0160 $0.0580
DPS SREA $0.1500 $0.0835 $0.0750 $0.0800 $0.0850
Return on Equity (ROF) B A< [E] 3R 19.9% 27.1% 16.8% 3.7% 14.7%
Return on Assets (ROA) BEEER 17.6% 23.2% 14.2% 3.2% 12.1%

TURNOVER BY
ACTIVITIES BREAKDOWN (%)
BREBE D Z2EFE (%)

1.1%

Services

98.9%

Products
Em

TURNOVER BY

GEOGRAPHICAL BREAKDOWN (%)

B i35 &l o 2 & R (%)

1.3%

Others (HK, Macau
and Malaysia)

H(F8 BMR

L2 18.7%
Talvan
80.0%

PRC
SE PNt

~

EHtd - —2- BEUHEBHHBAETERE



The Power
of Beauty

RIEHE BENEER




Management Discussion and Analysis
EEBN W N DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

B %% (B 8
2011 2010 Changes
=E——F —E-ZF 2

Turnover by Bibig B 5 2 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
geographical region o FiE T % FET % FET %
PRC F R K BE 473,234 80.0% 362,899 74.8% 110,335 30.4%
Taiwan =1 110,503 18.7% 112,734 23.2% (2,231) -2.0%
Others Hb 7,558 1.3% 9,756 2.0% (2,198) -22.5%
Total @at 591,295 100.0% 485,389 100.0% 105,906 21.8%

TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL REGION
g Bl o 2 = <

PRC | 11 I 473,234
FEIAE | 10 m 362,809

Taiwan | 11 I 110,503
£ | 10 112,734

Others | 11 W 7,558
Hib | 10 W 9,756
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENBR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

For 2011, turnover of the Group increased by 21.8% to HK$591.3 million
compared with HK$485.4 million in 2010. This was due to an increase in
product sales of HK$108.3 million generated from the strong performance
of the new concept stores and higher average sales per store in the PRC.

Turnover in the PRC market increased by 30.4% from HK$362.9 million
in 2010 to HK$473.2 million in 2011. The increase in turnover was mainly
due to a HK$110.9 million increase in product sales. Meanwhile, service
income declined by HK$0.5 million from HK$2.4 million in 2010 to HK$1.9
million in 2011 as a result of the closures of two of the Group’s self-owned
spas during 2011. Turnover in Taiwan dropped 2.0% to HK$110.5 million
in 2011 compared with HK$112.7 million in 2010 due to the stagnant
consumer market in Taiwan. The Group also closed four self-owned spas
in Taiwan in 2011. The closure of self-owned spas was mainly due to

the Group’s decision to re-focus management resources on the more
profitable franchise business. Affected customers were transferred to
independent franchisees.

Sales from other regions, including Hong Kong, Macau and Malaysia,
decreased 22.5% to HK$7.6 million in 2011 mainly due to the closure of a
self-owned spa in Macau. Contribution from these regions remained at an
insignificant level comprising just 1.3% of the Group’s turnover.

The Group’s overall gross profit margin increased from 73.2% in 2010 to
79.3% in 2011 due to the higher sales mix of NB-1 and Yam products
which have a higher gross margin and less inventory provision in the
current year. During 2010, the Group decided to discontinue non-
performing product lines and shifted its focus to more profitable core
products. As a result, a non-cash provision of HK$27.4 million for slow
moving and obsolete inventories was charged to Cost of Sales in 2010,
compared to a provision of HK$2.8 million in 2011.

Bt 7% [B] B8 ()

R-EBE——F  AEEZEEEHR T —
EF #2158 2 485,400,00058 7T L H21.8% =
591,300,000 T FEEAF M ERERSE
FrE4% 2 E RS MN108,300,000/& 5t ' B
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN®R DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) Bit 7% @] BE (@)
2011 2010 Changes
—E——F | ZZ2-ZF B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Turnover by activities REKE P ZEERE FHE T FERT FE& T %
Products Em
PRC AR K BE 471,310 360,433 110,877 30.8%
Taiwan =91 106,021 106,726 (705) -0.7%
Others H b 7,384 9,237 (1,853) -20.1%
Total 5t 584,715 476,396 108,319 22.7%
Services R &
PRC AR K BE 1,924 2,416 (492) -20.4%
Taiwan =91 4,482 6,008 (1,526) -25.4%
Others H i 174 519 (345) -66.5%
Total P 6,580 8,943 (2,363) -26.4%
Entrustment Zage
PRC W K BE - 50 (50) -100.0%
Taiwan =91 - - - n/a® i A
Others H b - - - n/a i A
Total @t - 50 (50) -100.0%

—h
—h

EHd - - BUHBHHBGFERE



-
N

| LOg Woday [enuuy papwi] ABojouyoa ] -oig Aineag |eineN

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENBR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

B 7 [B] B8 )

2011 2010 Changes
—E-—F —E-=ZF =)
BREKE D2 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Turnover by activities EE F& T % FE&T % F & T %
Products Em 584,715 98.9% 476,396 98.1% 108,319 22.7%
Services R & 6,580 1.1% 8,943 1.9% (2,363) -26.4%
Entrustment ZiERE - 0.0% 50 0.0% (50)  -100.0%
Total st 591,295 100.0% 485,389 100.0% 105,906 21.8%

TURNOVER BY ACTIVITIES
BRBEAD EXE

Products | 11 I 584,715
ER | 10 m 476,396

Services | 11 16,580
R | 10 B 8,943

Entrustment | 11
ZEE&E | 10 | 50

Products

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of a range
of products, including skin care, beauty, aroma-therapeutic products,
health supplements and make-up, under the “Natural Beauty” brand
name. Sales of products are the Group’s key revenue source and primarily
derived from franchised spas, self-owned spas and concessionary
counters in department stores. Sales of products in 2011 amounted to
HK$584.7 million, or 98.9% of the Group’s total revenue, representing
an increase of HK$108.3 million when compared with sales of HK$476.4
million (or 98.1% of the Group’s total revenue) in 2010. The increase

in product sales was mainly driven by the PRC where sales rose by
HK$110.9 million on the back of strong growth momentum of the new
concept stores and higher productivity per store. Gross margin on sales
of products for the Group as a whole increased from 77.2% in 2010 to
82.6% in 2011.

E &

AEBFTEUBEARAZ I RERERFEEE
B X3 BREER RBERBE¥Y
ANERER ERFEEAREETEZNRER
B ETEHFREMBKEFL - BELEKE
FORBEARBEE - E——FERHEE
%8 5 584,700,000 T (G A EBHIK A 2
98.9%) » B = & — Z £ 476,400,000 8 7T (5
15 7 £ [ 42 U X 98.1%) 1 40 108,300,000 /&
T EMBEEREMNETZEHNPEREHEE
HZERFHMSEcRYERIIRE[E
HAEE DB IEAM LESR110,900,0005 T
FESH AEEE2FEERHEECERERNE
H-ZE—ZSE2772%EME=_S——F 2
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN®R DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

B 7% B B @)

2011 2010 Changes
= —E-%%F #
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Service Income R 7% W & FET % FET % F& T %
Training income 13 R = 134 2.0% 734 8.2% (600) -81.7%
SPA service income K R 7% IR &= 5,012 76.2% 7,555 84.5% (2,543)  -33.7%
Others H b 1,434 21.8% 654 7.3% 780 119.3%
Total st 6,580 100.0% 8,943 100.0% (2,363) -26.4%

Services
Service income is derived from the self-owned spas’ services, training and
other services.

The Group provides skin treatment, beauty and spa services through its
self-owned spas. The Group’s strategy is to establish self-owned spas as
model outlets in strategic locations to stimulate overall sales of products
to franchisees.

Service income is solely derived from the Group’s self-owned spas. The
Group does not share any service income generated from spas run by
franchisees under its current franchise arrangements. The service income
the franchisees derive from the spas covers their operating expenses such
as rentals, salaries and utilities. In 2011, service income decreased by
26.4% to HK$6.6 million compared with HK$8.9 million in 2010.

The decrease was mainly due to the Group’s decision to re-focus
management resources on the more profitable franchise business, leading
to the closure of seven self-owned spas during 2011 (two in the PRC, four
in Taiwan and one in Macau).

Entrustment

Entrusted spas, which were formerly operated by the Group, are owned
by the Group and operated by reputable operators. In order to allocate
financial and human resources more efficiently, the Group put in place
entrustment arrangements in the PRC under which its self-owned spas
are entrusted to local reputable operators. The operators sell the Group’s
products in their stores and are entitled to all profits and responsible
for all losses from the operations. The Group receives a fixed annual
entrustment fee from the operator until its initial investment in the spa is
repaid, at which point, the entrusted spa becomes a regular franchised
spa.

During 2011, no entrustment income was recorded, compared with
HK$50,000 recorded in 2010. The decline in entrustment income was
attributable to the expiry of the remaining entrustment arrangements in
2010. The Group had no entrusted spas as at 31 December 2011.

R %
BRERZREBEXRBEFLRE - FIRE
b R 7 -

AEEEBHAELEKFEHRLREHENER
B -XBRKERB -AEEZXKBIRE
BAUESBEEEKREPLITEREREM
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DoBAREBEHBRITMBEKEZHE  AEEF
BEDIE R EMBELEKEDPLFEAEM

RERE - MBEXBEPLELEZRERREE
THHES FERAEELLHE X -RZE
——F > REREFEHK =T — T H8,900,000%
JT I 4 26.4% £ 6,600,0008 T c HEER L E
ERRAEBAESEBEREPHEHEER
FNELENMBERLE R ——FF
HMtEEERKREKEPL(WMBNRPEKX
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERN W& D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Other income

Other income mainly comprised rental income of other properties, interest
income and financial refunds, respectively of HK$1.3 million, HK$9.0
million and HK$5.6 million during 2011. Other income increased slightly by
2.9%, or HK$0.5 million, to HK$18.0 million in 2011, from HK$17.5 million
in 2010.

Distribution and administrative expenses

Distribution and selling expenses as a percentage of the Group’s turnover
increased to 33.3% in 2011 compared with 30.2% in 2010. Total
expenses increased by HK$50.3 million from HK$146.8 million in 2010 to
HK$197.1 million in 2011. The increase was mainly due to the recruitment
of more sales-related staff, resulting in higher salaries, commissions

and related personnel overheads during 2011. Meanwhile, the Group
has expanded the media channels it is using for branding promotions,
including magazines and the Internet (websites and blogs), instead of
the more expensive, traditional promotional channels (e.g. gifts and free
samples) to drive the sell-through rate of its inventory. Advertising and
promotion expenses decreased by HK$9.0 million from HK$65.5 million
in 2010 to HK$56.5 million in 2011, and the amount as a percentage of
the Group’s total turnover dropped from 13.5% in 2010 to 9.5% in 2011.
Other key expenses include salaries, travel and entertainment expenses
as well as rentals of executive accommodation and counters, which
amounted to HK$58.5 million, HK$14.0 million and HK$35.5 million,
respectively in 2011.

Total administrative expenses decreased by HK$16.4 million to HK$108.6
million in 2011. Administrative expenses as a percentage of turnover
decreased from 25.8% in 2010 to 18.4% in 2011. The declines in

both the amount and percentage were attributable to stringent control
on costs and expenses as well as lower rental costs due to office
closures of subsidiaries in the PRC and Taiwan. Administrative costs in
2011 comprised mainly non-cash stock option expenses of HK$30. 1
million, staff costs and retirement benefits of HK$29.9 million, legal and
professional fees of HK$11.0 million, traveling expenses of HK$3.3 million,
depreciation charges of HK$8.0 million, rentals of HK$3.9 million and
office and utilities expenses of HK$2.7 million in 2011.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERN W& D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Other expenses

Other expenses decreased from HK$25.2 million in 2010 to HK$7.8
million in 2011, representing a decrease of HK$17.4 million. Other
expenses mainly include the HK$4.4 million loss on disposal of fixed
assets, demolition and related costs due to spa closures and a HK$1.2
million foreign exchange loss in 2011.

Profit before taxation

Taking into account the increase in gross profit, lower administrative
expenses and other expenses, and increased distribution and selling
expenses, profit before tax increased by 128.9% from HK$75.8 million to
HK$173.6 million in 2011.

Taxation

Taxation expenses increased 29.5% from HK$45.1 million in 2010 to
HK$58.5 million in 2011. The effective tax rate of the Group for 2011 was
33.7% compared to 59.5% for 2010. The high effective tax rate in 2010
was due to the payment of under-provided profit taxes relating to previous
years amounting to HK$9.1 million.

Profit for the year
Profit for the year surged by 275.0% from HK$30.7 million in 2010 to
HK$115.2 million in 2011.

Liquidity and financial resources

Cash generated from operating activities in 2011 was approximately
HK$170.4 million (HK$173.9 million in 2010). As at 31 December 2011,
the Group had bank balances and cash of approximately HK$558.3
million (HK$575.5 million as at 31 December 2010) with no external bank
borrowing.

In terms of gearing, as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2011,
the Group’s gearing ratios were zero (defined as net debt divided by
shareholders’ equity) as the Group was in a net cash position on both
year-end dates. Current ratios of the Group (defined as current assets
divided by current liabilities) as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December
2011 were 4.6 times and 4.0 times respectively. As at 31 December 2011,
the Group had no material contingent liabilities, other than those disclosed
in its financial statements and notes thereto. With the cash and bank
balances in hand, the Group’s liquidity position remains strong and it has
sufficient financial resources to finance its commitments and to meet its
working capital requirements.

B 7% B BE o)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Charges on assets

At 31 December 2011, the Group had pledged bank deposits amounting
to HK$443,000 (HK$432,000 as at 31 December 2010) which are
required pursuant to a tenancy agreement for one of its wholly-owned
subsidiaries in relation to a self-owned store in Macau.

Treasury policies and exposure to fluctuations in
exchange rates

Most of the Group’s revenues are denominated in Renminbi and New
Taiwan Dollars as its operations are mainly located in the PRC and
Taiwan. As at 31 December 2011, approximately 81.5% (71.4% as

at 31 December 2010) of the Group’s bank balances and cash was
denominated in Renminbi, while approximately 14.9% (10.3% as at 31
December 2010 in New Taiwan Dollars. The remaining 3.6% (18.3% as at
31 December 2010) was denominated in US Dollars, Hong Kong Dollars,
Macau Pataca and Ringgit Malaysia. The Group continues to adopt a
conservative approach in its foreign exchange exposure management. It
reviews its foreign exchange risk periodically and uses derivative financial
instruments to hedge against such risk when necessary.

Bt 7% [B] BE (@)

EEKH
BERRM-HEELEEHEENAEE
Hph - H2EREMBLARANBEEREN
RE R-_ZBE——F+ZA=+—-H £&
B IF R 1T E 443,000 T(ZE—FF
+=ZB=+—H%432,000/8 t) °

BEMBRREAAZIERRE AR

ERAEEEXRTEEPRPEARERE
B OAEBABIVEUARERFTAES
B-R-_E——F+ZA=+—-H F£&EH
WOTEERREPH8I% (R —ZF
TZAZT—BATARUARBTE 3
#149% (R=—Z—ZEF+=-_B=+—H8A
103%) A AMTE B T36%(R=ZZT—
EE+-A=1+—-—HA183%AIUET B
ToBATRERATEGE AEBHE
ROAERREERNEERR THRFTH
FAZSZHIERB TREEEFEATES

RMTAHPEBERE-
BUSINESS REVIEW % 7 o] Fa8
2011 2010 Changes
—g—-%| —z-%¢ 2 8
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Turnover by geographic region #&ith 5 &l 5 2 & % 8 FT#Ex FHB T T T %
PRC W K RE
Products Em 471,310 360,433 110,877 30.8%
Services bR %% 1,924 2,416 (492) -20.4%
Entrustment R - 50 (50) -100.0%
PRC Total o OER K BE 4R ST 473,234 362,899 110,335 30.4%
Taiwan =0
Products =m 106,021 106,726 (705) -0.7%
Services iR 7% 4,482 6,008 (1,526) -25.4%
Entrustment ZERE - - - n/a- i@ A
Taiwan Total L) 110,503 112,734 (2,231) -2.0%
Others Hth
Products V=3 7,384 9,237 (1,853) -20.1%
Services AR % 174 519 (345) -66.5%
Entrustment ZRaKeE - - - n/a7 & f
Others Total H 45t 7,558 9,756 (2,198) -22.5%
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The PRC Market

Turnover in the PRC market increased by 30.4% in 2011 to HK$473.2
million compared with HK$362.9 million in 2010. The growth was mainly
due to the strong performance of the new concept stores and improved
average sales per store. Gross margin on product sales remained high at
83.0% in 2011.

Thanks to the strong revenue growth and enhanced operational efficiency,
profit before tax and net profit in the PRC increased by 75.6% (or HK$81.6
million) and 113.5% (or HK$90.0 million) respectively for the year under
review.

The Taiwan Market

Turnover for Taiwan decreased by 2.0% from HK$112.7 million in 2010

to HK$110.5 million in 2011. The decline was due to the closure of four

self-owned spas in Taiwan during the year, which resulted in a decrease
in service income by 25.4% from HK$6.0 million in 2010 to HK$4.5

3 7% B B )

B K PBE TS
FEAEMSZEEEHRH_ZT—F
362,900,000 7% Jt # & 30. 4%i E——F
473,200,000 T - WIBERZFTERR B HH
SERBAEAYLEEEHTFHHEEELA -
—E-—FERHEEZBERENRERERN
83.0% K & K F o

REWMABREARAYRELERNXRRES BE
FEZHE KRERB AR R AR 5 5 E
R 75.6% (81,600,000 7t ) % 113.5% (=
90,000,000 Jt)

888
BECEXEH_T—FF112,700,0008
TTT BK2.0%ZE = ——$1105ooooo,§no

BHREZTEERFAEMGENBBER
%*#ﬁqﬂ/t\’lﬂﬁ’ﬁgﬁﬂﬁiﬂ&km_%—

million in 2011. Thanks to more stringent cost controls and less inventory & 6,000,000/ TR 2 25.4% &2 & — — F
provision in Taiwan in 2011, profit before tax and net profit surged by 4 500,000 T - BE_—_ZET——F4& ,‘%“573’@
HK$34.3 million and HK$33.4 million respectively for 2011. BRERHORAEHS RARBEDEEERE
——ECBRBAIEANRER D /':':Jj(dlan:ﬂ
34,300,000 % 7T & 33,400,000 7T °
Distribution channels SEHEE
Franchisee

REEREE I owned Spa Self owned Total Entrusted Self owned Total Grand
Store Number by EHER RS Spa Spa  Counter  Counter  Counter Total
Ownership R-F--% BE BEKE KkEHD it BE 58 28
As at 31 December2011  +=A=t—8 KBERL  KERD By KEEgE Kegf @t @
Taiwan =) 310 3 313 - - - 313
PRC HE KB 1,134 2 1,136 22 34 56 1,192
Others 2t 33 - 33 - - - 33
Total At 1,477 5 1,482 22 34 56 1,638

Franchisee

Store Number by Ownership ZEEEE S 2 EHHE owned Entrusted  Self owned Total
As at 31 December 2011 R=ZFE-——f%+=-A=+-H mBEEESR EigE BERYE st
Taiwan =91 310 - 3 313
PRC HE K BE 1,134 22 36 1,192
Others H b 33 - - 33
Total @t 1,477 22 39 1,538
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BUS|NESS REVIEW (Continued) %ﬁ% @ E\(z‘g)
Distribution channels (Continued) 7o RE @)
2011 2010
2011 2010 Average Average
Average Average sales per sales per
store* store* store store
—E——F | ZE-ZF |ZE——F Z—E—FF
Average sales SR JE#H JE & IE SEEH & & Changes
per store FHEELE FHEE* | FHUHE | FHHEEE FTHHERE 0]
HK$ HKS HKS$
BT BT B I %
PRC B K pE 1,138.5 1,139.5 416,000 318,000 98,000 30.8%
Taiwan™** = 334.0 396.0 331,000 292,000 39,000 18.4%
Group total** EEA 1,472.5 1,5635.5 396,000 312,000 84,000 26.9%
* Average store number is calculated by (opening period total + closing period * FHERBE UGB MAT +HRAT) 25 &

total)/2
> Group total does not include Hong Kong, Macau and Malaysia turnover and
store count.
***  Taiwan sales excluded retail sales of “Fonperi” brand products which are sold

through different distribution channel.

The Group derives its income principally from its network of distribution
channels, including spas and concessionary counters in department
stores. As at 31 December 2011, there were 1,482 spas and 56
concessionary counters. There were a total of 1,477 franchised spas,

5 spas and 34 concessionary counters directly operated by the Group.
There were also 22 concessionary counters entrusted to reputable
operators. Franchised spas are owned by the franchisees who are
responsible for the capital investments in these spas. They are obliged to
use “Natural Beauty” or “NB” brand for all products in their spas. A wide
array of services, including hydrotherapy, facial treatment, body care and
skin care analysis, are provided in all the spas, while skin care analysis is
widely available at the concessionary counters in department stores.

On group basis, a total of 139 new stores were opened and 75 stores
were closed during 2011, with a net increase of 107 stores in PRC. The
closures were mainly due to violations of franchise terms or failure to
achieve minimum sales targets by franchisees. Through the elimination
of these non-compliant stores, a well-managed and coherent franchise
network is being maintained by the Group ensuring a consistent service
quality for consumers.

Average sales per store in 2011 improved strongly from HK$312,000 in
2010 to HK$396,000 in 2011. Average sales per store in PRC in 2011
increased by 30.8% to HK$416,000. In Taiwan, average sales per store
also increased by 13.4% to HK$331,000 in 2011.

** EEAHTEERERE BPARBERAEZE
EERIEFHEE -

v REHEETEREBTESHEREEHEZ
[Fonperi] M ERTEH -

AEERRFERBEAERLRBEERQT
EEESHREAKL R ——F+ =8
=+—H > AEBEHE1,482B K EH K56
BEEE AREBHEE1 477 MBKRED D
BEELKESBAKBERLEMEEE ZH22
BEEZTEFTLCEERLE - MBKEF O
HMBEEES BEARELRFKERLN
EXBRE - HEXKEDPLEERHEER
[BEAZEISINBIRE - FRKEHRLITIRM
ZERE BEKE HIRIBEEUR
EEEESNRE mMEELAREEEZR
HEEEED M

R-ZE——F  AEBESHBERIOBHFIE
o BEMCEER HhRAPEKRENIE
FOFEMIOTHE - BERAEHEERANMESE
ERMNBEKRARAEEINREHESHEBZ

B -EAAZEREETHRAZERHEZ
AEBBITHESEERTNE - MBELH
® BMRARFRE-"FNEERS-

CE-—FrBHEHTHOHEEEEEX
Z HZE-ZTE32008BTHAEE——
F396,0008 T —E——FHBEAREZ2EH
J& % F 19 88 & RE 1T N 30.8% £ 416,000 Tt ©
Reg —ZE——FE8BEHTH9HEER
I8 12 50 13.4% % 331,000 JT °
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Research and Development

The Group puts significant emphasis on research and development
which allows it to maintain its competitive edge as well as improve the
quality of its existing products and develop new products. The Group has
been collaborating with overseas skin-care companies on technological
development. The biotechnology materials the Group uses for its NB
products are imported from Europe, Japan and Australia. The Group’s
research and development team comprises a number of overseas
consultants with experience and expertise in cosmetics, medical,
pharmacy and bio-chemistry. NB’s products are constantly enhanced
and modified by the application of new ingredients developed by the
team. The Group draws on its collaboration of experts with different
expertise and experiences, together with Dr. TSAI's 40-year-plus industry
experience and knowledge to continue to create high-quality beauty and
skin care products. NB principally uses natural ingredients to manufacture
products and adopts special formulae to cater to the specific needs

of women with delicate skin. NB’s products accommodate the natural
metabolism of skin with long-lasting effects.

NB has collaborated with a leading researcher in the field of human
genome and stem cell technology for the development of an anti-aging
NB-1 product family and other products for spot removal, whitening,
allergy-resistance and slimming. The stem cell technology is patented in
the United States to protect the uniqueness of the NB-1 products.

New Products

The Group’s flagship NB-1 products family includes anti-aging NB-1
series, NB-1 Whitening series, NB-1 anti-allergy, NB-1 pore refining
series, etc. During 2011, over 520,000 sets/bottles (361,000 sets/bottles
in 2010) of NB-1 family products were sold with turnover aggregating
HK$231.8 million (HK$180.4 million in 2010) and accounting for more
than one-third of the Group’s total product sales recorded in 2011.

During 2011, the Group continued to enrich this product portfolio and
launched 9 new skin care products, 6 new products for the aroma-
therapeutic line and 5 new health supplements in the PRC.

The Group received 11 beauty awards in 2011 recognizing its
achievements in branding, products, new concepts stores as well as
operation management.

= %% [ B (m)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had a total of 804 employees, of
whom 670 were based in the PRC, 126 in Taiwan and 8 in other countries
and regions. Total remuneration (excluding directors’ emoluments) in
2011 was approximately HK$ 145.2 million (HK$122.6 million in 2010),
including retirement benefit related costs of HK$17.2 million (HK$14.2
million in 2010) and stock option expenses of HK$30.1 million. Employee
productivity (sales per employee) surged by 43.6% from HK$512,000 in
2010 to HK$735,000 in 2011. Competitive remuneration packages are
maintained to attract, retain and motivate capable staff members and are
reviewed on a regular basis.

The Group maintains good relations with its employees and is committed
to their training and development. Professional training courses are
offered to beauticians employed by the Group and to franchisees on a
regular basis.

In addition, the Group granted stock options to certain employees on 4
April 2011 to subscribe for a maximum of 90,895,381 shares which will
be vested in a ratio of 40%, 20%, 20% and 20% over a four-year period
subject to the grantees achieving certain performance targets. This
resulted in HK$30.1 million in stock option expense for 2011.

Capital Expenditures

The Group’s major capital expenditure in 2011 related to its self-

owned spas and refurbishment work for its offices, IT infrastructure and
machinery in its factories. Fixed assets increased by HK$50.7 million in
2011 (HK$37.2 million in 2010), mainly representing the expansion of

its new factory in the PRC amounting to approximately HK$12.8 million,
upgrades to its PRC training center and office amounting to approximately
HK$14.5 million, upgrades to its PRC and Taiwan IT system amounting to
approximately HK$4.5 million and the renovation of the self-owned spas
and counters amounting to approximately HK$7.5 million.

In December 2010, the Group moved its old Fengxian (Shanghai) skin
care plant to a new industrial development zone within Fengxian. The
new plant received GMP certification in January 2012 and will greatly
facilitate the Group’s plan to upgrade the quality of its skin care products.
Meanwhile, with the new production floor layout and consolidation in
production capacity, production productivity will also improve. The new
plant commenced production in the first quarter of 2011.
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OUTLOOK

As the PRC Government accelerates its efforts to stimulate greater
domestic consumption, the country’s urbanization will continue and the
rapid growth of disposable income per capita in the urban population is
expected to be maintained. Given this, despite high inflation and rising
labor costs, the Group believes the beauty and spa market in the PRC will
continue to grow in 2012.

Based on the successful launch of its new concept stores in 2010, the
Group will continue to focus on adding more stores in tier 3 and tier 4
cities in the PRC, and launching new concept stores in Taiwan market
next few years.
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Report on Corporate Governance

TREBMS

The Board and management of the Company are committed to
maintaining high standards of corporate governance. The Board had
adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines (the “CG Guidelines”)
(available on website: www.nblife.com/ir) which gives guidance on how
corporate governance principles are applied to the Company.

Save as explained herein, the Company applied the principles and
complied with all the code provisions set out in Appendix 14 Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) of the Rules Governing

the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The following summarises the
Company’s corporate governance practices and explains deviations, if
any, from the Code.

In addition to complying with applicable statutory requirements, we aim
to continually review and enhance our corporate governance practices in
light of local and international best practices.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

ARBvEEEREEBER NS KEZ
TEER BEEECHEMACEERERTH
(E<A TRFERERH:
www.nblife.com/ir) » & & <f Bl 5 A A< 2 8 &
Ah®¥ERRAELIES -

BRARERBIN ARAEARETE BB
EXEMAERLPB(BXFNES EHRE
TETRAUDM BT OFARECEERERT
AT D 2R R AAETRIRI - AT #
MARB 2 EXERFRARABRETA 2
BREE) -

RESFEREEREN  RQAFEATEHE
BUAREZERABREARKEEN EAEXLD
AEXERER -

S EE W

A. Directors AL EE
A1. The Board Al. EE &
Details of Directors' attendance records in 2011 are as follows: EEN_E——F2HELHEFAE
mE
Remuneration Audit Executive Nomination
Committee Committee Committee Committee Board
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
(Note 1)
iHzae EhZEe HiTza% R#zE% Ezg
EE £ £ EE EE
(1)
Executive Directors HiEZ
Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu [Note 2) EXTBL(HE) 12 nat B A 114 na B 114
M, LEE Ming-Ta FHELE natER nafER na @R nafE R 114
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (Note 3] HEHBELHE nafE R 33 natER naT B R 44
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu Note 4 BagBE L 2 nafEA 44 naF B 44
Non-Executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT Note 5] YA ES) 2% nat B A 44 nafE R 44
Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK (Note 6) Gregory Michae! ZELUCK % 4 (i 5 6) 20 natER 44 nafE R 44
M. FENG Janing Junyuan BERLL natER nafER na @R nafEf 44
M. NG Shieu Yeing Christna REENL nafEf 33 naRiEf naR A 44
Independent Non-Fxecutive Directors BU#HEE
Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER (Notes 7 &8) Francis GOUTENMACHERZ: 4 (K& 75:8) vatBA 3B 44 nat B R 44
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON (Note 8) B2ELZL(HS) ) 33 natE R nat BB 44
M. CHEN Ruey-Long (Note ) REREE(WES) 20 3 naf @R natER 44
Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing (Notes 7 &.§) BYIREHETRS) natE A 33 44 natE R 4

N
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (continued)

A. Directors (Continued)
AT. The Board (Continued)

Notes:

M

The Nomination Committee was established on 15 December 2011
and has not held any meeting during the period from 15 December to
31 December 2011.

Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu was appointed as a member of Nomination
Committee on 15 December 2011.

Dr. SU Chien-Cheng was redesignated as an Executive Director and
resigned as a member of Audit Committee on 15 December 2011.

Dr. SU Sh-Hysu was redesignated as an Executive Director and
resigned as a member of Remuneration Committee on 15 December
2011.

Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT was appointed as a member of
Nomination Committee on 15 December 2011.

Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK resigned as a member of Remuneration
Committee on 15 December 2011.

Appointed as one of the members of the Remuneration Committee
on 15 December 2011. No meeting was held by the Remuneration
Committee during the period from 15 December to 31 December
2011.

Appointed as one of the members of Nomination Committee on 15
December 2011.

Directors are consulted to include any matter in the agenda for
regular Board meetings.

The Company generally gives notice and draft agenda of regular

Board meetings at least 14 days in advance. The Company
aims at giving reasonable notice generally for all other Board
meetings.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is

responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are complied

with and advising the Board on corporate governance and
compliance matters.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (continued)

A. Directors (Continued)

Al.

A2

AS.

The Board (Continued)

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes

of Board meetings and its committees’ (each a “Board
Committee”) meetings, which will be sent to Directors within a
reasonable time (generally within 14 days) after each meeting
and will be made available for inspection by Directors and
Board Committee members.

The CG Guidelines allow Directors to take independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Instead of by way of circulation, full Board meetings will be
held for any material transaction with connected persons.
Independent Non-Executive Directors who, and whose
associates, have no material interest in the transaction should
be present at such meeting.

The Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”) provide
for voting and quorum requirements conforming with the Code
requirements.

Chairman, Vice Chairmen and Chief Executive Officer
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu serves as the Chairman, while Mr. Patrick
Thomas SIEWERT and Mr. LEE Ming-Ta were appointed as
the vice-chairmen. Mr. TSENG Hsin-Sheng John serves as

the Chief Executive Officer. The Chairman focuses on Group
strategic and Board issues while the Chief Executive Officer has
the overall responsibility for operations and development.

The Chairman has a clear responsibility to provide the whole
Board with all information relevant to the discharge of the
Board’s responsibilities.

The Company aims to continually improve on the quality and
timeliness of the dissemination of information to Directors. (See
Section A6 - “Supply of and access to information” for further
details)

Board composition

Composition of the Board, by category of Directors, including
names of the Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Independent Non-Executive Directors are disclosed in all
corporate communications.

There are four Independent Non-Executive Directors out of
twelve directors, representing one-third of the Board.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (continued)

A. Directors (Continued)
A4. Appointments, re-election and removal

Directors with service contracts, including Executive and Non-
Executive Directors, usually serve three-year terms, and are
subject to re-election. Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK, Mr.
Patrick Thomas SIEWERT, Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina, Ms.
FENG Janine Junyuan did not enter into service contracts with
the Company as they are employees of Carlyle Asia Investment
Advisors Limited, an entity established in Hong Kong. Carlyle
Asia Investment Advisors Limited has offices in Hong Kong,
Mumbai, Seoul, Beijing, Shanghai, Singapore and Sydney.
Carlyle Asia Investment Advisors Limited acts as the Asian
investment advisor to various Asian focused investment funds
managed by The Carlyle Group.

In accordance with Article 100 of the Articles, any new Director
appointed shall hold office only until the first general meeting
of the Company after his/her appointment and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Articles, one-
third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then a number not less than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting (“AGM”). Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina, Ms. FENG
Janine Junyuan, Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER and Ms. Su-
Mei THOMPSON will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company established a Nomination Committee on

15 December 2011 with a majority of its members being
Independent Non-Executive Directors. Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing,
an Independent Non-Executive Director, was nominated as
the Chairman of the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for, including but not limited to,
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendation to the Board on selection of candidates
for directorships. Full terms of reference (Nomination
Committee Charter) are available on the Company’s website:
www.nblife.com/ir.

T EE
A. BEE @)
Ad, ZEF - BFRBE

HEREEHNCES BRERIATE
FHITES —REPE=F &
E ®E 1T o Gregory Michael ZELUCK
EE CREEEE RFELL
RBEELLZTUWE|ERQT L
RIEEH EAEEE BCarlyle Asia
Investment Advisors Limited ( — & %
EBRIMNER)NEES - Carlyle
Asia Investment Advisors Limited 5
ERE - ZRE - BE -t=--LE-
FMERBEEREWRER - Carlyle
Asia Investment Advisors Limited &
EZEHCaeEEEEBUIMNA
ERNESKRERBD-

REEABE1001F  FAHELE
ERHEEZRZREERLALCTERER
RAE ERREEREREMF-

LA REBMAAEI7E BEF=
PRZ—EE HMABLIIE=
ZSZEE ATRPR=9—%E
RES ARSEERREFAE
(BRREFAE)HESTR R
FE LT B E LT Francis
GOUTENMACHER K B &R & + #%
REERRRBEAREHESE B
FEERTBEEEREMT-

RAARR=EB-——F+=A+EHA
RIUREBEZEEE HABHZEY
ARBYFPTES BIUFHITE
ERTIAEEREAREBEES
FE-REZEEEE(EBELET
RI)BRATESEZEE AEK
HERRAESREACERER[E
EERHEER - BREEGEGRSEZ
EEFTE)TRALAMULER:
www.nblife.com/ir °



Report on Corporate Governance

¥R

BERE

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (continued)

A. Directors (Continued)
A4. Appointments, re-election and removal (Continued)

Ab.

No meeting was held by the Nomination Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2011 since its establishment on 15
December 2011.

Responsibilities of Directors

On appointment, new Directors will be given comprehensive
orientation training by the Company’s legal counsel, to
explain the responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory
requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on Listing Rules and other statutory requirements.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors are members of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Individual Independent Non-Executive Directors are
also members of the Executive Committee.

The attendance record of individual directors for all Board and
Board Committee meetings in 2011 are set out in the beginning
of this report.

Throughout the year, Directors complied with the required
standards of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules regarding Directors’ securities transactions.

There were compliance manuals provided to each of the
Directors and members of senior management, which set out
(a) the principal continuing obligations of the Company and
the Directors as a result of the listing of the securities of the
Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; and (b)
the systems and procedures that the Company, its Directors
and senior management should follow in order to ensure
compliance with such obligations.

A6. Supply of and access to information

Board papers were normally sent to all Directors at least three
days before the date of the Board/Board Committee meeting.

Senior management members are from time to time brought
into formal and informal contact with the Board at Board
meetings and other events.

Board papers and minutes are made available for inspection by
Directors and Board Committee members.

T EE
A. BEE)
Ad. ZA1F - BEERBIE &)

HEREEER-2——F+=7
THARYE HRBE-T——
FH-A=+-ALFELEEFT

E=3
gk

A5, EEBE

HESREINEEL QR ERE
BRAEZEABEI HABE
BERAMEERE -

REAWERENEZRESREMA LD
RARHMEEEREZRHER -

EEBYUFHNTESHAERE
EE ¥FHEESERREEEEE
B -ERBILFRATESETAIAMT
ZEEZE-

BESER-ZE-—SHAESFER
EZZEEER 2 HERERANE

BRERED -

FR -ESEBTLTRAWMEL+ R
HETHRTABEZETESZRSGZ

=5 A o

EESROAEBEAEBERHTE
FH EFHIN@QFAQRAREEH
RRARBSEBMIFAERLEDM
REBLEC2FTERHEEE ROALD
A HEBSKRSREEBAEERET
ZHERBFUBRZSETES
RS

A6 BEXIEEHREH

EEEXH-—RRESS ESZ
EEERRAHAIRL=ZREREE
E=x-

EREBAETHEREESSH
REMEHHEHEEFTTEARFER
g

ESEUMNRERTHESRES
ZEEEM-

N
~

EHd - - BUHBHHBGFERE



28

| LOg Woday [enuuy papwi] ABojouyoa ] -oig Aineag |eineN

Report on Corporate Governance
TEEBRE

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (continued)

B. Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
B1. The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

JTEE B
B. EERESHREEAEFHFH

B1. # Bk F R AH B R 3 E

The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee. Full
terms of reference (Remuneration Committee Charter) are
available on the Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir.

Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT was appointed as a member of
the Remuneration Committee with effect from 24 November
2009. Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu, Mr. Gregory Michael
ZELUCK, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long and Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON
were appointed as members of the Remuneration Committee
with effect from 1 February 2010. Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu and

Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK resigned and Mr. Francis
GOUTENMACHER and Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing were appointed as
members of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 15
December 2011.

With reference to the Remuneration Committee Charter, each
committee member had carefully reviewed and considered the
terms of the service contracts during the year, contribution of
each of the Directors to the Group, the Directors’ experience
in the beauty and spa business and the market rate paid by
comparable companies.

Independent professional advice will be sought to supplement
internal resources where appropriate.

C. Accountability and Audit
C1. Financial reporting

Management provided explanation and information to the
Board to enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of the financial and other information put before the Board for
approval.

Directors are provided with reports on the management’s
strategic plans, updates on lines of business, financial
objectives, plans and actions. The Directors are responsible
for keeping proper accounting records and preparing accounts
for each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow
for that period. In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31
December 2011, the Directors have:

° approved the adoption of all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants;

° selected and applied consistently appropriate accounting
policies;

o made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable;

o prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.
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TEEBRE

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (continued)

C. Accountability and Audit (Continued)
C1. Financial reporting (Continued)
A statement by the auditors about their reporting
responsibilities is included in the Report of the Auditors set out
on pages 55 to 56.

The Board will present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment to annual and interim reports, other price-sensitive
announcements and other financial disclosures required

under the Listing Rules, and report to regulators as well as

to information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.

C2. Internal controls
The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. Management
regularly reviews the effectiveness of the risk management and
system of internal controls and compliance with best practices.
The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer also
report to the Audit Committee on key findings regarding internal
controls. The Audit Committee, in turn, communicates any
material issues to the full Board.

The Board’s review will also consider the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget.

During the year, the Board has conducted reviews of the
internal control system and considered the internal control
system of the Group has been implemented effectively.

C3. Audit Committee
Draft minutes prepared by the Company Secretary are sent
to members of the Audit Committee within 14 days of each
meeting. None of the Audit Committee members is a former
partner of the external auditors. Full terms of reference (Audit
Committee Charter) are available on the Company’s website:
www.nblife.com/ir.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board (which in
turn endorsed the view) that, subject to shareholders’ approval
at the forthcoming AGM, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu be
reappointed as the external auditors for 2012.

During 2011, the Group paid or accrued to the auditor HK$3.1
million for 2011 statutory audit services of the Company. The
Group did not receive any non-audit services from the auditors
during 2011.

There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee members
to take independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (continued)
C. Accountability and Audit (Continued)
C3. Audit Committee (Continued)
There were no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Audit Committee did not have any different view from the
Board regarding the selection and re-appointment of external

auditors.

The Audit Committee was provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties.

D. Delegation by the Board

D1. Management functions
There is a defined schedule of matters reserved for full Board
decision, including:
- Long-term objectives and strategies;
- Extension of Group activities into new business areas;
- Preliminary announcements of interim and final results;
- Material banking facilities;
- Material acquisitions and disposals;
- Material connected transactions; and
- Annual internal controls assessment.

D2. Board Committees
The Board has established four Board Committees (Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Executive Committee
and Nomination Committee) with specific terms of reference

available at the Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir.

Board Committees present their respective reports to the Board
after each meeting, which address their work and findings.
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TEEBRE

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (continued)

E. Communication with Shareholders
E1. Effective communication
Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

Chairperson of the Board and Chairmen of the Board
Committees or their respective delegates are requested to
attend the forthcoming AGM.

There was one AGM held since the issue of the last annual
report.

Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, the Chairperson of the Company, was unfit
to travel under medical advice (due to tooth implant) and was
unable to attend the Company’s AGM held on 13 May 2011
(2011 AGM”). The Board had arranged for Mr. Patrick Thomas
SIEWERT, the Vice-Chairman of the Company and a member
of the Executive Committee of the Group, who is well versed

in all the business activities and operations of the Group, to
attend on her behalf and to chair the meeting and to respond to
shareholders’ questions.

Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER and Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON,
who are Independent Non-Executive Directors, also attended
the 2011 AGM.

The Company arranged for the notice to shareholders for the
2011 AGM at least 20 clear business days before the meeting.

There is a dedicated section of “Shareholder Services”
in the Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir to provide
comprehensive information related to shareholders.

ZE B
EE %

RER

E1. B E

RELBRBEARBUSHEREEBY
REBER BEMENESESE-

EFRIRRESEEREIFAR
LEAERRRAHERERRTA
FRE

BE-—DFRABURBET R
BRRBFKRE -

AAREEEREIBEL(HETE
FIEBLEDE NESMNE  BK
ERSGHEARAE-ZFT——F5
AT=ZHRTzZRRBFRE(=
E-—FRERBAFAKEN -ESSE
CLHREREERREERER
RE UEERRERB - BAEZL
ERARFAREERAEEAHUTE
EEZE HAKEMBEXBKED
ReEEARER -

% 3 3 # 1T E E Francis
GOUTENMACHER%: 4 K B EB &
TTAEFEE——FRERBAFKX

g"

KARERERANZEL20ETEE
XPZHARRNB-Z-——FR
REFRE2ESE-

RN B H UL - www.nblife.com/ird 3%
(RRREIREG - WIEHBEBERR
ZEHEEHR -

W
-

EHd - - BUHBHHBGFERE



32

| LOg Woday [enuuy papwi] ABojouyoa ] -oig Aineag |eineN

Report on Corporate Governance
CEEARE

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (continued)
E. Communication with Shareholders (Continued)
E2. Voting by poll
Procedures for conducting a poll were set out in the notice of
the 2011 AGM. These procedures were also explained at the
commencement of the 2011 AGM.

A representative of the Company’s Share Registrar, Hong Kong
Registrars Limited was appointed as scrutineer during the 2011
AGM.

Poll results were published on the same day following the 2011
AGM and posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and
that of the Company at www.nblife.com/ir.

ADDITIONAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
AREAS

Institutional shareholder communications

We consider it important to have dialogues with institutional shareholders
based on mutual understanding of objectives.

Additional shareholders’ services can be found in the investor relations
section of the Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir.
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CHAIRPERSON AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
DR. TSAI YEN-YU (ALIAS TSAI YEN-PIN) (“DR.
TSAI”)

Aged 64, founder and Chairperson of the Company, the wife of Mr. LEE
Ming-Ta (an executive Director) and mother of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng and
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (both are executive Directors), is an executive Director

and is responsible for the strategic development of the Group. Dr. TSAI
has been awarded numerous honours, positions and prizes such as:

° Honorary Doctor of Commerce, Dewey University, the USA

° Fellowship of Asian Knowledge Management Association

° Female Entrepreneur Award by Ernst & Young “Entrepreneur of the
Year”

° Taiwan’s Top Ten Most Influential Female Entrepreneur awarded by
CommonWealth Magazine

° Outstanding Entrepreneurs of Taiwan awarded by Taiwan Women’s
Business Association

° “Top 100 Chinese Entrepreneurs” of China

° “Bai Yu Lan” Award by the Shanghai City Government

° Principal consultant in the Chinese Ministry of Labor and the
programme “Ji Qing Chuang Ye” of CCTV

° Principal consultant of cosmetology arbitration panel in the Chinese
Ministry of Law

° 1 Pacemaker Award and Education Award of Beauty and Cosmetics
Industry in China

° Chairman of Association of Beauty Technique in Taipei

° Chairman of Association of Beauty and Hairstyle in Taiwan

VICE CHAIRMAN/EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
MR. LEE MING-TA

Aged 64, is the Vice Chairman and an executive director of the Group.
He is the husband of Dr. TSAI, whom is the Chairperson and an executive
director of the Group. Mr. LEE is also the father of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng
and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu, both are executive directors of the Company. Prior
to joining the Group in 1993, Mr. LEE had worked for various financial
institutions at senior management level for over 10 years in corporate
management and staff training. Mr. LEE graduated in Fengchia University
in Taiwan with a bachelor degree in Banking and Insurance.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: DR. SU CHIEN-
CHENG

Aged 40, the son of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (Chairperson and an executive
director) and Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (executive director) and he is the elder
brother of Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu who is also an executive director of the
Company. Dr. SU Chien-Cheng was an non-executive director and re-
designated as executive director effective from 15 December 2011. He

is involved in the financial management and strategic management of the
group at Board level. Dr. SU Chien-Cheng graduated from the University
of Westminster in UK with a master degree of business administration
and obtained his PhD in Business Administration in Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics. He joined the Group in 1999.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: DR. SU SH-HSYU
Aged 38, is the daughter of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (Chairperson and an
executive director) and Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (executive director) and the
younger sister of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng, is also an executive director of
the Company. Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu was a non-executive director and re-
designated as executive director effective from 15 December 2011. Dr.
SU Sh-Hsyu graduated from the London School of Economics with a
Master of Science degree in industrial relations and human resources
management and obtained her PhD in international and comparative
education from Columbia University in New York, United States. Dr.
SU Sh-Hsyu had been actively engaged in the marketing and business
development of the Natural Beauty Group in Taiwan and China during
the period from 2004 to 2009. Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu is involved in strategic
management of the group at Board level.
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VICE CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR: MR. PATRICK THOMAS SIEWERT

Aged 56, is currently a senior director of Carlyle based in Hong Kong.
Mr.SIEWERT has been working at Carlyle since April 2007. Mr. SIEWERT
currently sits on the board of directors of a variety of companies in which
funds of Carlyle have investments, including, without limitation, C.P.
Pokphand Company Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (Stock code: 43) and China Fishery Group Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Singapore (Stock code:
B0Z). Mr. SIEWERT also sits on the board of directors of Avery Dennison
Corporation, a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange (Stock
code: AVY) and Computime International Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock code: 320). Mr.
SIEWERT has also been the chairman of Eastern Broadcasting Company
Limited since August 2008. Prior to joining Carlyle, Mr. SIEWERT worked
at The Coca-Cola Company from 2001 to 2007 and was group president
and chief operating officer Asia, and was previously president of Kodak
Professional and senior vice president of Eastman Kodak Company. Mr.
SIEWERT received a Master of Science degree in service management
from Rochester Institute of Technology and a Bachelor of Science degree
in business administration from Elmhurst College. He was appointed

as the Group’s non-executive director on 24 November 2009 and Vice
Chairman on 1 February 2010.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
MR. GREGORY MICHAEL ZELUCK

Aged 50, is currently a managing director of Carlyle and is a co-head of
the Fund. Mr. ZELUCK has been working at Carlyle since July 1998 and
has been a managing director since that time. At Carlyle, Mr. ZELUCK has
overseen investments in a variety of companies across Asia, including,
without limitation, Taiwan Broadband Communications Co., Ltd, Eastern
Broadcasting Company Limited, Pacific China Holdings Limited, kbro
Co., Ltd., Ta Chong Bank Limited a company listed on the Taiwan

Stock Exchange (Stock code: 2847) and Natural Beauty. Mr. ZELUCK
currently sits on the board of directors of a number of companies in
which funds of Carlyle have investments, including, without limitation,
Hyundai Communications & Network Co. Limited, Eastern Broadcasting
Company Limited, kbro Co., Ltd. and Ta Chong Bank Limited. Prior to
joining Carlyle, Mr. ZELUCK worked in Merrill Lynch’s Asian high yield
team and spent 13 years in Lehman Brothers’ corporate finance and
merchant banking groups, approximately four of which were spent in Asia.
Mr. ZELUCK received a Bachelor of Arts degree from Princeton University,
graduating magna cum laude in East Asian studies. He was appointed as
the Group’s non-executive director on 24 November 2009.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
MS. NG SHIEU YEING CHRISTINA

Aged 39, is currently a director of Carlyle based in Hong Kong. Ms.
NG has been working at Carlyle since 1998 and has been a director
since January 2006. At Carlyle, Ms. NG has overseen investments

in, among others, Taiwan Broadband Communications Co., Ltd,
Eastern Broadcasting Company Limited, China Pacific Insurance
(Group) Company Limited, kbro Co., Ltd. and Natural Beauty. Prior
to joining Carlyle, Ms. NG was an associate with Exor Asia, the direct
investment arm of the Agnelli Group of Italy from 1997 to 1998. Ms. NG
received a Bachelor of Science degree in management science from
the Massachusetts Institute of Technology. She was appointed as the
Group’s non-executive director on 24 November 2009.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
MS. FENG JANINE JUNYUAN

Aged 43, is currently a managing director of Carlyle based in Hong Kong
and is focused on Asian buyout and growth capital investments in sectors
including consumer, financial services, industrial and healthcare. Ms.
FENG has been working at Carlyle since 1998, and has been responsible
for several investments in China. Ms. FENG currently serves as a director
of China Pacific Insurance (Group) Company Limited. Prior to joining
Carlyle, Ms. FENG was a senior associate at Credit Suisse First Boston’s
investment banking group in New York. Ms. FENG received a Master of
Business Administration degree from Harvard Business School and a
Bachelor of Arts degree, summa cum laude and Phi Beta Kappa, from
Middlebury College. She was appointed as the Group’s non-executive
director on 24 November 2009.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
MR. FRANCIS GOUTENMACHER

Aged 70, had worked closely with some of the most prestigious names
in the business, including Cartier, Van Cleef & Arpels, Piaget, Vacheron
Constantin, Alfred Dunhill and Jaeger-LeCoultre, etc. He had also been
the Managing Director of Cartier France, the CEO of Piaget International,
and the President of The Hong Kong Watch Importers’ Association

from 2004 to 2006. Mr. GOUTENMACHER was also the former CEO of
Richemont Asia Pacific, one of the world’s leading luxury groups and in
20086, retired from Richemont and established Gouten Consulting Limited
to help luxury brands with their marketing and strategic development of
their luxury brands in the challenging and rapidly emerging market of Asia-
Pacific. Mr. GOUTENMACHER is currently an independent non-executive
director of I.T Limited, whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. He is also a director of Gouten Consulting Limited, an
advisor to several local luxury groups, and sits on the board of directors
of several non-listed companies. He was appointed as the Group’s
independent non-executive director on 1 February 2010.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
MS. SU-MEI THOMPSON

Aged 45, obtained her Master of Business Administration (Dean’s

List) degree from IMD in Lausanne, Switzerland, a first-class Masters
degree in law from Oxford University, England and a BA degree in law
from Cambridge University, England and is a UK qualified solicitor. Ms.
THOMPSON is currently the Chief Executive Officer of The Women'’s
Foundation, a leading Non-Government Organisation promoting the
advancement of women in Hong Kong. Previously, she held senior
regional management positions at Walt Disney Television Asia-Pacific
where she was Regional Director of Legal & Business Affairs, the Financial
Times where she served as Managing Director for Asia and was a member
of the FT’s Global Management Board, and Christie’s where she was
Senior Vice-President, Strategic Business Development for Asia. She
started her career as a corporate finance lawyer at Linklaters and served
in the firm’s London, Paris and Hong Kong offices. Ms. THOMPSON is

a Co-founder and Advisory Board Member of Intelligence Squared Asia
and a Corporate Member of The Cheltenham Ladies College in the United
Kingdom. She was appointed as independent non-executive director of
the Group on 1 February 2010.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
MR. CHEN RUEY-LONG

Aged 63, obtained his Bachelor degree of Economic from National
Chung-Hsing University in 1970. He was the Minister of the Ministry of
Economic Affairs of Taiwan from 2006 to 2008. Prior to that, he held
various positions and represented the Ministry of Economic Affairs of
Taiwan in various countries and was based in Switzerland from 1987

to 1996 and in Belgium from 1974 to 1979. Mr. CHEN was the Board
Chairman of the Institute for Information Industry in Taiwan from 2008
to 2009, and he is currently the Board Chairman of SINOCON Industrial
Standards Foundation in Taiwan, the Board Chairman of Teknowledge
Development Corp. in Taiwan, a board member of SICDC Ltd. & SICDC
Vision Technology Ltd. in BVI, a member of the Advisory Board of
Newport Digital Technologies, Inc. (stock code: NPDT) listed on the
OTC Bulletin Board Market in USA and an independent director of Bank
of Panhsin in Taiwan. He is a director of HannStar Board Corp. (stock
code: 5469) and Asia Cement Corporation (stock code: 1102), which are
listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. He is also a director of Powerchip
Technology Corporation (Stock code: 5346) and E-Ton Solar Tech. Co.,
Ltd. (Stock code: 3452), both are listed on the Taiwan GreTai Securities
Market. He was appointed as the Group’s independent non-executive
director on 1 February 2010.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
MR. YANG TZE-KAING

Aged 57, obtained his Master of Business Administration degree from
University of lllinois at Urbana-Champaign, USA in 1982 and his PhD

in Strategic Management from National Chengchi University of Taiwan
in 1987. He is currently a professor of the Department of Business
Administration in National Chengchi University, the Chairman of Yangtze
Associates, the President of Huiyang Private Equity Fund Co., Ltd., the
Supervisor of ASUSTeK Computer Inc., a director of RITEK Corporation,
an independent director of ASROCK Incorporation. Mr. YANG was also
the Deputy Minister of the Ministry of Finance of Taiwan, the Managing
Director and Acting Chairman of Bank of Taiwan, the President of China
Development Industrial Bank of Taiwan and an associate professor in
National Chengchi University and National Chiao Tung University. He
was appointed as the Group’s independent non-executive director on 1
February 2010.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER: MR. TSENG
HSIN-SHENG JOHN

Aged 62, joined the Group as the Chief Executive Officer with effect from 4
January 2010. Mr. TSENG graduated from American Graduate School of
International Management (Thunderbird), USA with a Master in Business
Administration in 1982. He was the Chairman and President, Greater
China of The Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company from 2005 to 2008. Prior
to that, Mr. TSENG had been working in Eastman Kodak Company from
1982 to 2005, and had served as the General Manager and Corporate
Vice President of Consumer and Professional Imaging in Greater China
and Greater Asia regions from 2000 to 2005.

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND CHIEF
OPERATING OFFICER: MR. CHAN YIU WING

Aged 55, joined the Group as the Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Operating Officer in February 2010. Mr. CHAN graduated from the
University of Hong Kong with a Master in Business Administration in
1990 and a Bachelor of Social Sciences in the same university in 1979.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. CHAN was the China General Manager
of Evergreen Packaging. Prior to that, Mr. CHAN had been working in
Eastman Kodak Company from 1980 to 2007, and held broad spectrum
of senior positions in general management, sales and marketing, finance,
operations, product development and project management including the
Regional Operations Director for North Asia, China General Manager for
Consumer and Professional Imaging and Regional Business Director for
Consumer Output Business for Greater Asia Region.

VICE PRESIDENT OF RETAIL MANAGEMENT:
MR. LEE MENG HOE, ANTONIO

Aged 50, joined the Group as the Vice President of Retail Management
with effect from 5 January 2010. He is also acted as the Vice President of
Sales in PRC. Mr. LEE graduated from the National Chengchi University
in Taiwan with a Bachelor in Business Administration. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. LEE had been working in Eastman Kodak Company, and held
broad spectrum of senior positions in general management of Kodak and
Key Account, Greater Asia Regional Director of Kodak Express Franchise
Program. He also worked for Unilever (Taiwan) Company Limited, Circle
K Convenience Store (Taiwan) Limited and a subsidiary of Li & Fung
(Retailing) Limited with senior positions of product manager, marketing
manager and executive director of these companies with extensive
experience in franchise store development and management.
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CHIEF MARKETING OFFICER: MS. TAI YIM
TING SHIRLEY

Aged 47, joined the Group as Chief Marketing Officer with effect from

1 July 2010. Ms. TAI graduated from University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of Arts degree and obtained an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree jointly issued by Kellogg Management Institute and
Hong Kong University of Science & Technology. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms. TAI had been working as the General Manager of Reckitt Benckiser in
Hong Kong & Taiwan region, the General Manager of Estee Lauder Hong
Kong and Clinique China of Estee Lauder Inc. and was the Vice-President
of Non-Carbonated Beverage Division, Pepsi Beverages International
Greater China, with over 17 years of marketing and management
experience in Greater China Region and good exposure in cosmetics
industry.

FINANCIAL CONTROLLER AND COMPANY
SECRETARY: MR. CHAN YAN KWAN ANDY

Aged 43, is the Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the Group.
Mr. CHAN is responsible for the financial planning and monitoring. He
graduated from the University of Hull in the UK with a bachelor’s degree
in economics (economics and accounting) in 1992 and graduated from
Richard Ilvey School of Business with University of Western Ontario,
Canada with an Executive MBA in 2008. He is an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a holder of
Practitioner’s Endorsement certificate issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. Prior to joining the Group in July 2004, Mr.
CHAN worked in an international accounting firm and had served senior
financial positions in a NASDAQ listed company and a renowned German
exhibition company.
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Directors’ Report
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and selling of skin care, beauty
and aromatherapeutic products and (b) provision of skin treatments,
beauty and spa services and skin care consulting and beauty training.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 57.

An interim dividend of HK$0.035 per share amounting to HK$70,074,000
was paid to the shareholders during the year. The directors now
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.050 per share to the
shareholders on the register of members on 25 May 2012, amounting to
approximately HK$100,105,000. Details of the dividends are set out in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales and purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover
and purchases for the year respectively.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties at 31 December 2011 were fair
valued by an independent firm of professional property valuers. No fair
value change has been recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2011. Details of movements during the year in the investment
properties of the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (alias Dr. TSAI Yen-Pin)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (alias Mr. LEE Ming-Tah)
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng
(redesignated as an executive director on 15 December 2011)
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu
(redesignated as an executive director on 15 December 2011)

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK
Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT
Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina
Ms. FENG Janine Junyuan

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER

Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long

Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing

In accordance with Article 117 of the Company’s articles of association,
one-third of the Directors or if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then a number not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation at each annual general meeting. Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina,
Ms. FENG Janine Junyuan, Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER and Ms. Su-

Mei THOMPSON will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves

for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.18 of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive directors
independent.
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BOARD COMMITTEES AND VICE CHAIRMEN

The Company has established an audit committee, remuneration
committee, nomination committee and executive committee.

Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina was appointed as a member of the audit
committee of the Company with effect from 24 November 2009. Dr. SU
Chien-Cheng, Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER, Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON,
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long and Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing were appointed as
members of the audit committee of the Company with effect from 1
February 2010. Dr. SU Chien-Cheng resigned as a member of the audit
committee of the Company with effect from 15 December 2011.

Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT was appointed as a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 24 November
2009. Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu, Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK,
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long and Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON were appointed as
members of the remuneration committee of the Company with effect
from 1 February 2010. Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu and Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK
resigned and Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER and Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing
were appointed as members of the remuneration committee of the
Company with effect from 15 December 2011.

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu, Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT and Mr. Gregory Michael
ZELUCK were appointed as members of the executive committee of the
Company with effect from 24 November 2009. Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Mr.
Francis GOUTENMACHER and Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing were appointed as
members of the executive committee of the Company with effect from

1 February 2010, to which the Board will, until it otherwise determines,
delegate such powers, authorities and discretions as may from time to
time be approved by the Board, including, without limitation, all of the
powers, authorities and discretions to consider the strategic direction of
the Group and review the monthly business and financial performance of
the Group and the implementation and execution of the business plan and
annual budget of the Group.

A nomination committee of the Company was established during the
year. Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu, Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT, Mr. Francis
GOUTENMACHER, Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long and
Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing were appointed as members of the nomination
committee of the Company with effective from 15 December 2011.

Mr. LEE Ming-Ta was appointed as one of the vice-chairmen of the
Company with effect from 24 November 2009. Mr. Patrick Thomas
SIEWERT was also appointed as one of the vice chairman of the Company
with effect from 1 February 2010.

ESEZESEkEERE
ANTARALERERE FHERE R
ZERERUFEAR-

REBLTEZRRBEARAERZESZE

E BHZZEEAFt+-A-THmABERNK-
% #2318 = -~ Francis GOUTENMACHER %&

* BAEELZT BREBEERBEFILEE
AEZEAXLAABEREER®EZE B -
—EFE_A-HEEY -HEABIBETN
AERFMEEEZE B=-FT——F+=A
T+THEABEEK-

REELEBEZRAEALDATHNEZEESZ
E B-EEAFt+-—A-t+THARBERK-
BHEEE L HFHEE L Gregory Michael
ZELUCKE.: BB EERBARELZ L
AEZAALRLNATMNEERZE B =
E-ZF_A-HRBER -HIBEBIR
Gregory Micheal ZELUCK % 4 & T » M Francis
GOUTENMACHERE . RIB FI A E B Z
ABEAQARFMNEESZEE B-F——F
+TZA+TERER-

B T b4 2 5 4 & Gregory Michael
ZELUCKE B ZRABALABITEEEZ
E BZEEAFT+-A-tHEHEBEN-
2% £ 18 £ - Francis GOUTENMACHER % 4%
REFILERAEZEARQRAFPITEES
Z8 B-Z-ZF_A-HRBEM-ES
ERBUREZEEES UM TEEZE
I BRRERBBEE BEEFRRAZTELRE
EXRBIRZMEED BERBBEEUR
ERAEESAXEBERMBRBEURETR
BOTAKEEERGFEARFERE -

ARAAREFARILRBRZEG -BHEEHE
+ - JE 4 & % &£ - Francis GOUTENMACHER
AE - BAERZLT BREBEERBFIIE
Y REZEXRRBEAQRAREEEEZE B-E
——E+-_ATEBAEEXK-

THEREBRZARARAEEFE BZF
ENF+-A-THERBEN -HERBLELE
TREZEERARABETFE BZZE-2F=
B—BEEX-

H
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Directors’ Report
EEEREE

BOARD COMMITTEES AND VICE CHAIRMEN

(Continued)

The compositions of the audit committee, the remuneration committee,
the executive committee and the nomination committee of the Company
as well as the vice chairmen of the Company upon the last changes with

EEZESREEE @

BEREHR-Z-——F+-ATHRHER
RERABFEAY FARARAELEZES  HMN
ZEE HITEEERREREZEEMEUR

effective from 15 December 2011 and as of date of this report are set out ARBEEFRIDT
below:
Director Audit Remuneration Executive ~ Nomination Vice
Type  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Chairmen
Name of Director EEHn? ESEA ENZEE ¥FWzEE #7zE5e€ R%ZEe EES
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu EREfL D Y Y Y
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta THERE ED Y
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng BE@EtL ED
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu BEBET ED
Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT BEELE NED Y Y Y
Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK Gregory Michael ZELUCK % & NED
Ms. FENG Janine Junyuan BEnut NED
Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina REELT NED Y
Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER Francis GOUTENMACHER % & INED Y Y Y Y
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON BRELt INED Y Y Y
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long RIEE £ E INED Y Y Y
Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing BTIEE INED Y Y Y Y
ED: Executive Director ED:#TES

NED: Non-Executive Director

INED: Independent Non-Executive Director

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE

COMPANY

As at 31 December 2011, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders were

approximately HK$129,115,000 which represents the share premium and
retained profits of the Company.

NED: k#HTES
INED: B FHITES

ZNYNE IR b R

RZEBE——F+_-_A=+—-—H XQ2FAES
RE RAQPAAIHIRFRRZBEBO S
129,115,000 0  ZERBE N AL A ZRH

BERFEERR -
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors’ service contracts entered into between the Company

and each of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Mr. LEE Ming-Ta and Dr. SU Chien-
Cheng expired on 31 December 2011 and were renewed for three

years from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2014 with an initial annual
remuneration of HK$1,000,000, nominal HK$1 and HK$1,250,000
respectively. The directors’ service contract entered into between the
Company and each of Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu was terminated on 31 December
2011 and was renewed for three years from 1 January 2012 to 31
December 2014 with an initial annual remuneration of HK$1,250,000.
The directors’ service contracts entered into between the Company and
each of the independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Francis
GOUTENMACHER, Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long and
Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing, were for a term of three years commencing on 1
February 2010.

These service contracts may be terminated by either party giving to the
other one to three calendar months’ notice in writing.

There was no service contract entered into between the Company and
each of Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT, Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK, Ms.
FENG Janice Junyuan and Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina.

The initial annual remuneration pursuant to such service contracts for the
year ended 31 December 2011 are summarised as follows:

EERBEEL

AAREEXTIEL THELLEREE
HEBLTIT I 2EESRBEENER T ——
F+ZA=+—BE®R L25AFEH
1,000,000 7T~ &M 178 T & 1,250,000 %
TEI OB E—-_HF—-—AF—HAEBE_Z
—mE+ A=+ —-—BLAH=ZF- KR
FEGSEBEIILI2EERBEALNER
2+ ZHA=1+—BH&KLE WUE
#1,250,000 8B TET BE-_ZEZ—Z_F—A8
—HEE-_E-—HNE+ZA=+—HLA
H=% o &N A KB IFEHITESEFrancis
GOUTENMACHER%t 4 - BZB 2+ - R
EERBFILEET U2 EERBANEDN
Al ZF_A—HHEKB AB=F-

ZERBENTHEN-—FTAHHTHRETD
R=ZEEBEANZEEESAL-

7R 5] I 4% B2 i 4 18 5E 4 - Gregory Michael
ZELUCKEE - BERLZLTRRFELLTE
BRI URBEEH -

RANEHZ-E——F+-A=t+-A%
ERBAL DSFEEMLBENT :

Annual
increment on

Annual director fee Discretionary
Director type director fee EEns bonus
Name of Director EEnR EZER FEEEMS FERIE [SR-RIE
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu EXxIEL ED $1,000,000  Note (a) Mf#F(a)  Note (b) Hf &F (b)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta THELE ED $700,000 Note (a) Hf&F(a)  Note (b) Hf & (b)
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng BEeEmEt ED $600,000 Note (a) Kf & (a) Note (b) M & (b)
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu ESpEt ED $600,000  Note (a) Kt &E(a)  Note (b) Ktz (b)
Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER  Francis GOUTENMACHER % 4 INED $240,000 N/ATE A N/AF i A
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON B&Ez L INED $240,000 N/ATiE A N/AT i A
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long BRI &% & INED $240,000 N/ATE A N/ATE A
Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing BFIxE INED $240,000 N/ATE R N/AT 3
Total @st $3,860,000

H
a
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EEEREE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (continued)

Notes:

(@  The annual increment of the directors’ fee for executive directors and non-executive
directors shall not exceed 10% of the annual fee of preceding year.

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors may receive a bonus approved
by and at the discretion of the Board from time to time. The bonus to all executive
directors and non-executive directors shall not exceed 15% of the audited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company in respect of that
financial year of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, Mr. LEE Ming-Ta had waived his
director fee for the year.

No director bonus was proposed nor paid for the years ended
31 December 2010 and 2011.

Save as disclosed above, no director has any unexpired service contract
which is not determined by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

BEERBES D@

CEE

@ BTESRIVTES2EZWELEFHEET
BHEBH—FZFERE10%-

(b) FTEBRIVTEZTRNESTIHHIE
HEZRA - 2BUTEZRFHUTES 2T
ATESBBAEERZYBREELADAEARAA
BiEREREAERN15% -

BE-ZZE——F+-A=+—-RHLEE Z
BEEERERRAFEFEZEERS -

CERBE-_B-—BER-F——5+=f
S+-BUrFERBRARCRAESE
i

BREXREEN RESBREBETVYEFALE
BRAIR-—FRARVHECRETHER
M ILEZHERERRES L -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2011, the interests of the directors, the chief executive
and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”)
contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

EERFETHAERRD
2R

RZE——F+-_A=+—H EE -XZE
THRAERBECHBEALRALIREM
BLiEz2RD HERORES+S EER
BARQPAREEFRBEKRNTEEZR D
BB NDEB2EEFEE2ZLM SRE L
TRAMB LT ATNESETESRGNE
ESFH(REFHNERZTHNSERAQATAR B
Rz ERmWMT :

REQXARGREERG 2R

Ordinary shares =B K
% of the issued share

Number of capital of the Company
Director Nature of interest ordinary shares i NN
= EEME ZBEREEB BTREABDL
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu O Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000 65.63%
EHEEELO FEHAAER
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta @ Interest of spouse 1,314,030,000 65.63%
THHEXRED e 18 #E &
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng © Deemed interest 1,314,030,000 65.63%
BEHELO REkR
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu @ Deemed interest 1,314,030,000 65.63%
BaEELO RERER

Notes:

(1) Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu directly owns 40% of Next Focus Holdings Limited, which, in
turn, indirectly owns 50% of Standard Cosmos Limited. Standard Cosmos Limited
is therefore a controlled corporation of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu pursuant to Section 316
of the SFO. As such, the 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company attributable to
Standard Cosmos Limited are attributable to Dr. TSAI.

(2)  Mr. LEE Ming-Ta is the spouse of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu and accordingly, is deemed to
be interested in the 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company attributable to Dr. TSAI
Yen-Yu pursuant to Section 316 of the SFO.

(8)  Each of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu is taken to be interested in the
1,314,030,000 shares of the Company which are indirectly owned by Starsign
International Limited pursuant to Sections 317 and 318 of the SFO by virtue of Dr.
SU Chien-Cheng and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu being parties to a shareholders’ agreement
dated 15 October 2009 which imposes obligations or restrictions on the parties
thereto with respect to their use, retention or disposal of their interest in shares of
the Company.

(1)  %E# F 8 + & $ % B Next Focus Holdings Limited
40% & % » 7% A =) Bl [ ## # 8 Standard Cosmos

Limited 50%# % ° RIEF F R BAE R HIE3160F -

Standard Cosmos Limited B MBEEEB L 2 3
2 %)% @ o @ Ik - Standard Cosmos Limited & 4&5
21,314,080,000 R XX AR B AIBAEHEL -

(2 ZTHEALAEAEIBIZEE BEEER
HERAE6K ZHELEAMBPRENSE
# F 18 + FE {5 2 1,314,030,000 )8 A< 2 F) B 13
HEERR -

(B MREBHRBEKRHBEINT7TRIISKE  BREE
HETIRGSEBIHRBEHAE-_ZSTAET
Bt+HEAZRRBEZTNS  ZHERER
RBRHEREREAQAARD 2 EEZATNS
EMEXRRS  HHEHELRHEFHEEH L
£ B % % 1F F Starsign International Limited & 2 #§
B 21,314,030,000 RAED A RH P HEHER -

E-Y
~
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EEEREE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued)

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company (Continued)

Ordinary shares (Continued)

Details of the interests of directors and chief executive in the derivatives
interests in the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 are
disclosed in the Share Options, are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors, the chief executive
nor their associates had any interests or short position in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 December 2011,

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company
Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 26
to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options
during the year:

EERFTETHRAERRKRRD
2 FE 2= o)
RAEALATIARGEEBERG 2% & (&)

ZAEKE)
BE-ZE——EF+-A=+—-HLEE &
BEERIETHRAEBERERQATATERRZZ
REFBEERGEMBRRWE6AMEAN
RS-

BREXWEEN R-FE-——5+2A8

=t—-—HB HMEES FETRAESHES
ZHMBATRAQRAFAEEMBABEE 2F
fAlRs EHEROAESTEBEAESESR

KA

g

¥ /NI
ARBRREFE2EBENRNGEUBHRE
ff 5% 26 ©

TEARBRENRAAARKRES RS

Outstanding
at
Outstanding Granted 31.12.2011
at1.1.2011 during Forfeited R=-2--F
Vesting Exercisable Exercise W-Z--F the year during +=A
Option Type Date of Grant period* period price -B-H rEE the year =t+-H
AREER RHAH R  ARH ke W & AT 6 Bl AEERY W & AT 6
2011 Option 4 April 2011 4 years 4 April 2012 to HK$1.90 - 90,895,381 (1,001,050) 89,894,331
“E--FRRE “E--F¥MAMA MmE 3 April 2021 19087
“Z-"EMAMAZE
“E--FEMA=H
* The options will vest over 4 years commencing from the date falling on the * RREKBEAEE-ZE——FHRFERLER

publication of the audited financial results of the Group for the financial year 2011
at the rate of up to a maximum of 40% for the first year and up to a maximum of
20% for each of the following three years, subject to (i) the achievement of the
performance targets for each financial year as determined by the Board at its sole
discretion, and (i) the relevant grantee remaining as an eligible person (as defined in
the share option scheme of the Company) at the time of each vesting of the options.

BREETRERABREZI0N(E-—FIRESF
BZ20%HE=ZFIZULEZRUERNBE K4+
ARRARESERBEHE ((ERESSNETE
BHREFERERENRREE ROMBERA
MARERAT(EERAQXANARETE) -
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no time

during the year was the Company, its holding companies, or any of

its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2011, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows
that, the following shareholders other than the directors of the Company
had notified the Company of relevant interests in the issued capital of the
Company.

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the
Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

BERDIEZT 2L H

BREXABEERRESEIN RERNEME
B ALAHERLQE HEFHE QAR
BRAMBLARALESHEITIVEMNRZY - L
AARESAHEBRBAQXIREMEAMEA
MEsRDKEEMEFR -

FERR
R-ZEBE-——F+ZA=+—-H x27RE
BERPEGROERCHRFEZCTERRSR
METR RAAAESUN UTRREA
ERALNARERARACHTRAFTEERER
B o

REATROREBROGZHR
AKAAEGREBEI10E T ZEER
Percentage

of the issued
share capital of

Number of
ordinary shares

beneficially held the Company
Name of substantial shareholder Notes  Nature of interest BERBEE GHELFBRT
TERREE/ERB M BEUE EBERYE REABS I
Efficient Market Investments Limited Beneficial owner 838,530,000 41.88%
BERBBA
Adventa Group Limited Beneficial owner 236,580,000 11.82%
BEHREAA
Fortune Bright Group Limited Beneficial owner 236,580,000 11.82%
EHERA
Starsign International Limited 1 Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000 65.63%
ZEHNAESR
Next Focus Holdings Limited 2 Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000 65.63%
REHDAESR
CA NB Limited 3 Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000 65.63%
ZRHATESR
Carlyle Asia Partners Ill, L.P. 3 Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000 65.63%
ZEHNAESR
Keywise Capital Management (HK) Limited Beneficial owner 202,170,000 10.10%
AEBREER(FER)ERAA BEREAA
Orchid Asia V, L.P. 4 Beneficial owner 131,110,650 6.55%
EHERA
OAV Holdings L.P. 4 Interest of controlled companies 131,110,650 6.55%

XRHLAES

H
©
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
Long position in shares and underlying shares of the
Company (Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0. 10 each of the Company (Continued)

FERE@m
RELATARGRHEBERG 2 H & @)

AR EEFREME0. 108 T 2 & B IR (E)

Percentage

Number of of the issued

ordinary shares share capital of

beneficially held the Company

Name of substantial shareholder Notes  Nature of interest BEEBEs (XQACEST

TERREE BB M BEUHE EBRYE REABS I

Orchid Asia V GP, Limited 4 Interest of controlled companies 131,110,650 6.55%
ZEHARESR

Orchid Asia V Group Management, Limited 4 Interest of controlled companies 131,110,650 6.55%
ZEFEARER

Orchid Asia V Group Limited 4 Interest of controlled companies 131,110,650 6.55%
SRHATER

Areo Holdings Limited 4 Interest of controlled companies 132,435,000 6.61%
ZEHARESR

LI Gabriel 4 Interest of controlled companies 132,435,000 6.61%
THEE ZEHAAESR

LAM Lai Ming 4 Interest of controlled companies 132,435,000 6.61%
HE® TEHQAESR

Notes: B 5 -

M

Starsign International Limited is the sole shareholder of Standard Cosmos
Limited, which, in turn, is the sole shareholder of Efficient Market Investments
Limited, Adventa Group Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited. As such,

the 1,311,690,000 shares of the Company collectively held by Efficient Market
Investments Limited, Adventa Group Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited
and 2,340,000 shares of the Company held directly by Standard Cosmos Limited
(totalling 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company) are attributable to Standard
Cosmos Limited and Starsign International Limited.

Next Focus Holdings Limited directly owns 50% of Starsign International Limited.
As such, the 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company in which Starsign International
Limited is interested are attributable to Next Focus Holdings Limited.

Carlyle Asia Partners I, L.P. is the sole shareholder of CA North Beach Limited,
which, in turn, is the sole shareholder of CA NB Limited. CA NB Limited directly
owns 50% of Starsign International Limited. As such, the 1,314,030,000 shares of
the Company in which Starsign International Limited is interested are attributable to
CA NB Limited, CA North Beach Limited and Carlyle Asia Partners Ill, L.P..

Starsign International Limited % Standard Cosmos
Limited Z M — % R » M Standard Cosmos Limited
A Efficient Market Investments Limited * Adventa
Group Limited & Fortune Bright Group Limited 2

M — R 3R o A It - FA Efficient Market Investments
Limited +Adventa Group Limited & Fortune Bright
Group Limited & @ % & 2 1,311,690,000 & 48 2
7 1% 10 & A Standard Cosmos Limited E #3558 =~
2,340,000 2~ A &) IR 17 (B & $£1,314,030,000 %
7R A ) B 19) A 58 7 Standard Cosmos Limited &
Starsign International Limited °

Next Focus Holdings Limited & #% # & Starsign
International Limited 50% % # » & LIt Starsign
International Limited % 5 #& # 2 1,314,030,000 B&
7R 2 B % 19 7T 88 7 Next Focus Holdings Limited ©

Carlyle Asia Partners I, L.P. & CA North Beach
Limited 2 M — B 3 » T CA North Beach Limited
% CA NB Limited Z M — & 3 ° CA NB Limited
H # # A Starsign International Limited 50% &
# » (A Itk Starsign International Limited 1 & # &
21,314,030,000 I Z~ 2 & B% £3 7] 5% 7 CA NB
Limited + CA North Beach Limited & Carlyle Asia
Partners lll, L.P.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the
Company (Continued)
Ordinary shares of HK$0. 10 each of the Company (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(4)  Areo Holdings Limited is the sole shareholder of Orchid Asia V Co-Investment,
Limited and Orchid Asia V Group Limited. Orchid Asia V Group Limited is the sole
shareholder of Orchid Asia V Group Management, Limited, which, in turn, is the sole
shareholder of Orchid Asia V GP, Limited, which, in turn, is the sole shareholder
of OAV Holdings L.P., which, in turn, is the sole shareholder of Orchid Asia V,

L.P. Orchid Asia V, L.P. and Orchid Asia V Co-Investment, Limited directly held
131,110,650 (approximately 6.55%) and 1,324,350 (approximately 0.07%) of the
shares of the Company, respectively. Areo Holdings Limited is beneficially owned
by LI Gabriel and LAM Lai Ming. LAM Lai Ming is the spouse of LI Gabriel.

Save as the interests disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 December 2011.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

The Group had the following significant transactions with connected
persons:

()  On 29 October 2010, (a) the Taipei Tenancy Agreement was entered
into between Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Company Limited B
MREEYRHIRMDER QT (formerly Natural Beauty Cosmetics
Company Limited B A E{bAt 7R DERAD E) (“NB Taiwan”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as tenant and Dr.
TSAl as landlord renewed for a period of two years from 1 November
2010 to 31 October 2012 with a monthly rental of TWD2,250,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$564,929), and (b) the Pa-Der
Tenancy Agreement was entered into between NB Taiwan as tenant
and Dr. SU Chien-Cheng as landlord for a period of two years from
1 January 2011 to 31 December 2012 with a monthly rental of
TWD75,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$18,831).

(i) On 17 August 2010, the Company entered into a Consultancy
Service Agreement with CA NB Limited, pursuant to which the
Company agreed to appoint CA NB Limited for the provision of
certain consultancy services, for a period of approximately 17
months which commenced from the date of the Consultancy Service
Agreement, i.e. 17 August 2010 and will expire on 31 December
2011, both dates inclusive, for a fee of HK$445,588 per calendar
month. Details of the Consultancy Service Agreement were set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 17 August 2010.

FERE@m
RELATARGRHEBERG 2 H & @)

A 2\ B & IR EI 60.10/8 7T 2 & # K (%)
GERRE

(4)  Areo Holdings Limited&Orchid Asia V Co-Investment,
Limited & Orchid Asia V Group Limited
2 M — B& 3 ° Orchid Asia V Group Limited%&Orchid
Asia V Group Management, Limited & t — & 3 »
T Orchid Asia V Group Management, Limited &
Orchid Asia V GP, Limited Z M — & & + i Orchid
Asia V GP, Limited & OAV Holdings L.P. 2z M — &
3 > MOAV Holdings L.P.%&O0rchid Asia V, L.P.Z 1
— B&% 3 ° Orchid Asia V, L.P. & Orchid Asia V
Co-Investment, Limited %3 Bll B # #5 8 131,110,650
PR (#96.55%) ] 1,324,350 B% (#90.07%) A< 2 7] &
13 ° Areo Holdings Limited H Z=E 1% &k MEBBHE
HEE - NEPRLHZEENERB-

BREXRBE 2SN R-ZFE-——F+=A
Zt-A - FALFABRAERAAFC H#
TRAZENEMERERI AR -

EEXGREEREREHY
Z e
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Directors’ Report
EEEREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF

SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

(i) (Continued)
On 14 December 2011, the Consultancy Service Agreement with CA
NB Limited was renewed for a period of three years from 1 January
2012 to 31 December 2014 for a fee of HK$368,000 per calendar
month. Details of the Consultancy Service Agreement were set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 14 December 2011.

The above transactions are regarded as continuing connected
transactions pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Particulars of
the transactions are disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The independent non-executive directors confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into by the Group in the ordinary course of its business,
on terms no less favourable than terms available from independent third
parties and in accordance with the terms of the agreement governing
such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed above:

() no contracts of significance subsisted to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year; and

(i)  there were no transactions which need to be disclosed as connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the board of directors on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors and chief executives of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and are decided by the
board of directors, as authorised by shareholders at the annual general
meeting, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note
26 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-
laws, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

INSUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Citigroup Global Markets Asia Limited, on behalf of Standard Cosmos
Limited, made a mandatory unconditional cash offer (“Offer”) to acquire all
the issued shares in the share capital of the Company (other than those
already owned by Standard Cosmos Limited and parties acting in concert
with it), the details of which are set out the Company’s announcement
dated 23 November 2009 and the composite document in relation to the
Offer jointly issued by the Company and the offeror, namely Standard
Cosmos Limited on 23 November 2009 (“Composite Document”). Upon
closing of the Offer, 462,774,932 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 23.11% of the total issued share capital of the Company,
are held by the public. Prior to the Offer, the percentage of the shares of
the Company held by the public was 23.00%. Accordingly, the Company
has insufficient public float and does not meet the requirement under Rule
8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Composite Document, to the extent that there is
insufficient public float for the Company as a result of the Offer and
Standard Cosmos Limited is unable to or does not exercise any right

it may have under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands to
compulsorily acquire those shares of the Company not acquired by
Standard Cosmos Limited pursuant to the Offer, the directors of Standard
Cosmos Limited and the new directors who were appointed to the
Company on 24 November 2009 will jointly and severally undertake to the
Exchange to take appropriate steps to ensure that sufficient public float
exists in the shares of the Company.

The public float of the Company as at 31 December 2011 was
approximately 24.27%.

The Company is exploring various approaches to fulfil the public float
requirement.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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AUDITOR % EEm

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint  AA T B AR EEFAXEESRER UE

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company. BEH EAEMASHMITALRRATIRE
f o

On behalf of the Board RERES=E

Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT e 4B &

DIRECTOR EE

Hong Kong &3

27 March 2012 —E2--f=A=-++tH



Independent Auditor’'s Report
BYZBE RS Z

Deloitte.
=E)

TO THE MEMBERS OF
NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Natural Beauty
Bio-Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to 131, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of

the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,

as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBEMBRES

Auditor’s Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as

well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2011, and of
the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mezmEkaER

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BE-_Z2-——S+-A=t-RHLEE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Distribution and selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Exchange differences arising on
translation

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income (expense)
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
Basic

Diluted

Notes

B &

PN 5
8 & B A

E 7

H il Uy 58 7
THE X

H 32

B Bt Al 8 Al
FREBAX 8

N F i A 9
H 2 H K
BEEENELZR

AEEEHWHEBE

LTATEREEAFE
=R (ER)
RRARERA
FERES

PPN o R R
(X )% -
ARNBERA
FERES

BREF 12
2R

g

2011 2010
—E-—F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx T T
591,295 485,389
(122,162) (130,007)
469,133 355,382
18,027 17,523
(197,106) (146,828)
(108,617) (125,009)
(7,790) (25,220)
173,647 75,848
(58,475) (45,138)
115,172 30,710
20,393 33,292
135,565 64,002
115,123 31,303
49 (599)
115,172 30,710
135,531 64,563
34 (561)
135,565 64,002

HK5.8 cents & 1l

HK1.6 cents & 1l

HK5.8 cents & 1l

N/AT 18 A

a
~

Edtd - —- BEUHBHHBAETERE



a
o

| LOg Hoday [enuuy panwi ABojouyoa] -oig Aineag jeinjeN

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At 31 December 2011

R=—B——#+=-A=+-8

Non-current assets
Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments

Goodwill

Available-for-sale investments

Current assets
Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Prepaid lease payments
Pledged bank deposits
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Deferred income
Taxation payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Retirement benefit obligations
Deferred taxation liabilities

FRBDEE
BREMRE

THE -BMERRHE

B SR
7
AR

RBEE
rE

B 5Kk EAEWERN

BALHBEER
Eﬁ#ﬂﬁﬁ%
THEERRE

REBEE

BEEREMENSKRIN

iE 5E W 3%
FE 13 %1 8

RBEEFE

HEERRBAEE

FRBEE
BRABANEME
EEHREER

Notes

By

14
15
16
17
18

19
20
16
21
21

22
23

24
27

2011 2010
—g--%| —T-%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
THERT FE T
5,117 5,251
261,106 232,078
9,710 9,636
27,507 26,640
303,440 273,605
40,260 46,725
55,891 44,392
300 289
443 432
558,202 575,488
655,186 667,326
135,832 126,102
6,476 10,555
12,802 9,045
155,110 145,702
500,076 521,624
803,516 795,229
10,009 10,493
5,322 2,102
15,331 12,595
788,185 782,634




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e bR R R E

At 31 December 2011

R-ZB-——H+=-A=+—H

Capital and reserves BARFEE
Share capital B A<
Reserves fit 1%

Equity attributable to owners of the AABEEAEMHER

Company
Non-controlling interests IE = AR R =
Total equity R

The consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 131 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2012 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Dr. SU Chien-Cheng
HEsEL

Director

=

Note 2011 2010
i | —®——% | —Z-T%F
HK$°000 HK$'000

FER FB

25 200,210 200,210
587,794 582,277

788,004 782,487

181 147

788,185 782,634

BRI ENGAUERRR =T —Z=F
—A-ttEEEsEHETEETR I

HAUTHRRESE:

Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT

AL L

Director

=
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

BE-ZT-——-F+=

At 1 January 2010

Exchange differences arising from
translation

Profit (loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income (expense) & & & 2

for the year

Transfers

Dividend paid to non-controlling
interests

Dividends recognised as distribution
(note 13)

At 31 December 2010

Exchange differences arising from
franslation

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income for
the year

Recognition of equity-settled share
based payments

Transfers

Dividends recognised as distribution
(note 13)

At 31 December 2011

A=+—HBLEE
Attributable to owners of the Company
ARAERAER
Share Non-
Share Capital Share  Statutory Translation option  Retained controlling
capital surplus  premium reserve  reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
Rx  ExE%  ROEE GERE EXRE ZREEE REEN A FERER @i
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TBr f#x TEr TEx  fEr TEr TEx  TEx  TEr  TEn
R-E-E%-5-A 200210 42,554 4,016 151,867 66,25 - 36190 868,082 746 868,828
BEELHESZE
- - - - 33,260 - 33,260 R 33,292
REEEF(F8) - - - - - - 838 8130 (93 30,710
AlE(REEE
- - - - 33,260 - 31,308 64,563 (561) 64,002
&5 - - = 3658 = (3,658) -
ERFERERRA
- - - - - - - - (38) (38)
BRMEARZRA
(K& 13) = = - - - - (150,158)  (150,158) - (160,158)
WZZ-ZE+ZB=t-5 200210 42554 4016 155515 99505 - MU3FTT 782487 47 782,63
BEEEHESER
- - - - 20,408 - - 20,408 (1) 20,393
REEEH - - - - - - 11518 115128 49 115172
AEE2ANE
- - - - 20,408 - 15128 135,531 3 135,565
BARRAR
- - - - - 30,154 - 30,154 - 30,154
g5 - - - 1,654 - = (1,64) - - -
RS RZRA
(K3T13) - - - - - - (160,168 (160,168) - (160,168
W-E--E+ZB=t-BH 200210 42,554 4,016 167,169 119,923 30,154 196978 788,004 181 788,185




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZ_Z-——H+-A=1+T—-HLEHFE

SHARE PREMIUM

In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account is distributable to the owners of the Company
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed.

STATUTORY RESERVE

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”), the PRC companies with foreign investment are required
to transfer a certain percentage of its profit after tax, as determined under
PRC accounting regulations (the “net profit under PRC generally accepted
accounting principles (“PRC GAAP”)), to the general reserve fund and
enterprise expansion fund. Distribution of these reserves shall be made
in accordance with the Article of Association and approved by the board
of directors each year. Other PRC companies are required to transfer a
certain percentage of their net profit under PRC GAAP to the statutory
surplus reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50% of their paid—
in capital.

According to the laws and regulations of Taiwan, Taiwan companies shall
set aside 10% of their statutory net income each year for the legal reserve,
until the reserve balance has reached the paid-in share capital amount.

CAPITAL SURPLUS

The capital surplus represents the difference between the consideration
paid and the relevant share of the carrying value of the subsidiaries’ net
assets acquired upon the Group Reorganisation in year 2002.

These above-mentioned reserves and funds cannot be used for purposes
other than those for which they were created and are not distributable as
cash dividends.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

an\ IE’%/)“JE%

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-FT——F+-A=+t-HALFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& T

Profit before tax RR B B & F

Adjustments for: BRAETHZIE:
Interest income F B g #

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Release of prepaid lease payments

THE -BMERREBINE
HETBHE BMERRBER
BoBEALHEER

Increase in fair value of investment properties BREWERAFEEM
Allowance for obsolete inventories REFERE
Impairment loss on trade receivables ESZEWERMAEES
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments AHHERERBERSE
Share based payments RN

Operating cash flows before movements in working &ZE&E £ # B Al 2
capital KEBEESRE

Decrease in inventories
Increase in trade and other payables

(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables

(Decrease) increase in deferred income
Decrease in defined benefit obligations

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Increase in pledged bank deposit

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment
Interest received

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FERD

B KEMENKRRE M

B 5 K& H b F& W AR =X (45 hn) s 2
iR ZE W 25 ORt 2) 38 4N
EHEBNEERD

REXBELEZRE
SRS

RETHRERLFHR

REED

BETHE BRERRE

B & #8817 7 7R 18 0

HERBE BMERRMB
Fri& ®R

2 WH R

REFDFAREFHR

2011 2010
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TAER FTET
173,647 75,848
(9,004) (2,774)
23,233 19,471
3,176 8,177
296 279
= (62)
2,797 27,409
839 639
- 3,926
30,154 =
225,138 132,913
3,668 14,942
9,730 32,266
(12,338) 40,351
(4,079) 265
(484) (1,382)
221,635 219,355
(51,261) (45,465)
170,374 173,890
(50,737) (37,168)
(11) @)
1,223 6,731
9,004 2,774
(40,521) (27,665)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z——F+=-BA=+—HBLEE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 7l & 5E B
Dividends paid TR AT BR R
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests 2K I 12 R = R A
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES METBHFAESER
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRESEEY
EQUIVALENTS WD R
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R—BA—HZEE&EK
1 JANUARY ReZEY
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ExgHssE

RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT Rt+t=-—B=+—-—8B=2
31 DECEMBER, ReRESEEY
represented by bank balances and cash (EBRITEFRER)

2011 2010
—2--%| -E-%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FiE
(160,168) (150,158)
- 38)
(160,168) (150,196)
(30,315) (3,971)
575,488 559,346
13,119 20,113
558,292 575,488
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wm

BB WRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HEz=

E-—F+ZA=Z+-BLEE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 29 June
2001 as an exempted company with limited liability. Its shares have
been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 28 March 2002. Its parent and ultimate
parent are Standard Cosmos Limited and Starsign International
Limited, respectively, and both were incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the introduction to the
annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group
is principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and selling of skin care,
beauty and aromatherapeutic products and (b) provision of skin
treatments, beauty and spa services and skin care consulting and
beauty training. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Amendments to HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2010

HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) Related Party Disclosures
Amendments to HKAS 32
Amendments to HK(IFRIC) - Int 14

Classification of Rights Issues

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments

HK(IFRIC) - Int 19

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZ_Z-——H+-A=1+T—-HLEHFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 7

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(FRIC) - Int 20

Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets'

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities?
Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS

9 and Transition Disclosures®

Financial Instruments®
Consolidated Financial Statements?
Joint Arrangements?
Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities®
Fair Value Measurement?
Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income?®
Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets*
Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z——F+=-BA=+—HBLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are within

the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured

at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All
other debt investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that

is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future
will have impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s
available-for-sale investments. Regarding the Group’s available-
for-sale investments, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z——F+=-BA=+—HBLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial
statements and HK (SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities. HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of control that contains
three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the
ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10
to deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HK
(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions
by Venturers. HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which
two or more parties have joint control should be classified. Under
HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified as joint operations

or joint ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of the
parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS 31, there are
three types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly
controlled assets and jointly controlled operations.

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting, whereas jointly
controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted for using the
equity method of accounting or proportionate accounting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)
HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the
current standards.

These five standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is permitted provided that all
of these five standards are applied early at the same time.

The directors anticipate that these five standards will be adopted

in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning 1 January 2013. The application of these five
standards will have no significant impact on amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets

The amendments to HKAS 12 provide an exception to the general
principles in HKAS 12 that the measurement of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities should reflect the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the entity expects to
recover the carrying amount of an asset. Specifically, under the
amendments, investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40 Investment Property
are presumed to be recovered through sale for the purposes of
measuring deferred taxes, unless the presumption is rebutted in
certain circumstances.

The amendments to HKAS 12 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2012. The directors anticipate that
the application of the amendments to HKAS 12 may have impact on
deferred tax recognised for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model. However, the directors have not yet
performed a detailed analysis of the impact of the application of the
amendments, and hence have not yet quantified the extent of the
impact.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits

The amendments to HKAS 19 change the accounting for defined
benefit plans and termination benefits. The most significant change
relates to the accounting for changes in defined benefit obligations
and plan assets. The amendments require the recognition of
changes in defined benefit obligations and in the fair value of plan
assets when they occur, and hence eliminate the ‘corridor approach’
permitted under the previous version of HKAS 19. The amendments
require all actuarial gains and losses to be recognised immediately
through other comprehensive income in order for the net pension
asset or liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position to reflect the full value of the plan deficit or surplus.

The amendments to HKAS 19 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and require retrospective
application with certain exceptions. The directors anticipate that
the amendments to HKAS 19 will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning
1 January 2013 and that the application of the amendments to
HKAS 19 may have impact on amounts reported in respect of the
Group’s defined benefit plans. However, the directors have not yet
performed a detailed analysis of the impact of the application of the
amendments, and hence have not yet quantified the extent of the
impact.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of other
new and revised Standards and Interpretations will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEESFTHE
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on

the historical cost basis except for investment properties that are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance (effective from 1 January 2010 onwards).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZ_Z-——H+-A=1+T—-HLEHFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on
an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and titles have passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided. Payments
that are related to services not yet rendered are deferred and
shown as deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Entrustment fees arising from arrangements for third party operators
to operate the same business as the Group are recognised in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in equal
instalments over the entrustment periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z——F+=-BA=+—HBLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than freehold land and properties under
construction as described below) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items

of property, plant and equipment (other than freehold land and
properties under construction) less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees. Such properties
are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant

and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation. Investment properties include land held
for undetermined future use, which is regarded as held for capital
appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property
are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZ_Z-——H+-A=1+T—-HLEHFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense
on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties under the fair
value model. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZ_Z-——H+-A=1+T—-HLEHFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately as an expense.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z——F+=-BA=+—HBLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of the
translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
equity under the heading of translation reserve.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Funds as required under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and

the Labour Standards Law (as amendment) in Taiwan and the PRC
municipal government retirement scheme, are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing
benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of the reporting
period. Actuarial gains and losses which exceed 10 per cent of

the greater of the present value of the Group’s defined benefit
obligations and the fair value of plan assets at the end of the previous
reporting period are amortised over the expected average remaining
working lives of the participating employees. Past service cost is
recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already
vested, and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
average period until the amended benefits become vested.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial
gains and losses and unrecognised past service cost, and as
reduced by the fair value of plan assets. Any asset resulting from
this calculation is limited to unrecognised actuarial losses and
past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and
reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from the profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled

or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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e KKK

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination the tax effect is included in
the accounting for the business combination.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for the internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when

the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, the internally-
generated intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the
same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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BEZ_Z-——H+-A=1+T—-HLEHFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets
The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy
on impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the respective
credit period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on receivables.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is

the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

FE ST X @)
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o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZ_Z-——H+-A=1+T—-HLEHFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial assets and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another equity to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,
the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts

on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues
to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

3. TESFTHER @
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the
share option reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between

the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2011, the carrying
amount of trade receivables is approximately HK$26,307,000
(2010: HK$18,564,000), net of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately HK$1,634,000 (2010: HK$2,828,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z-——+ZHA=+—HLEE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Estimated impairment of inventories
Management of the Group reviews inventories on a product-by-
product basis at the end of each reporting period, and makes
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified
that are no longer suitable for use in production and trading.
Management estimates the net realisable value for such items based
primarily on the latest invoice prices, sales after year end and current
market conditions. As at 31 December 2011, an allowance for
inventory of HK$2,797,000 (2010: HK$27,409,000) was recognised.

5. REVENUE

Revenue represents the net amount received and receivables for (i)
goods sold by the Group to outside customers which is stated net
of sales returns and allowances, (ii) service income from provision of
skin treatments, beauty and SPA services and (iii) entrustment fee
income for the year, and is analysed as follows:

Sales of goods Em#EE
Service income BR 7% Wg A
Entrustment fee income TS W=

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

HKFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis
of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker, the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, in order to allocate resources to the
segment and to assess its performance. The Chief Executive Officer
of the Company reviews internal reports which focus on geographical
segments by location of customers for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance. This is the basis
upon which the Group is organised.

TEEGHTZ2EERE@

FEZMAstRE

rEBZE ﬂﬁ#%ﬁ%%ﬁuﬁﬁ
HEBNERSBSBHEE  WHATER
ﬁﬁ WEF&xEZWE&%ﬁﬁ
EBREHBBE -EEEZTERERE
HRZEE FRAEHEERRBITHRMG
AREEAZHUEZEFE R ——
F+-A=1+-—H EHEIAFERE
2,797,000 ;t (= & — & F : 27,409,000
BIT) °

/N
BAEXRFEFERAEBON)ETHIAEFE
BRZEBREBREYTEE DHREEESE
RITMBIER ()R B IRHENEEE
EZRARKERKE 22 WK FE W AR Uk
A RNEELE 2B W R E WK
AWM

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FH T
584,715 476,396
6,580 8,943

= 50

591,295 485,389

pali
BERUKREELERNESHERAE K& D
MIREBEERERABNA D T ITE L
BRI BEERERTHERBEEHES
ERASEET TR zARBEREE
BE-MERIERKXKEBEFGEMS &
AFATHARERERREFMEH 2
HhE D ERAEBIRE - Ty AREE 2 A S
HE.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 72 EE @
Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments under HEmMS AEERBEEBVHREE
HKFRS 8 are as follows: A8 2 RERITBEDHAOT ¢
1. The PRC 1. HEKRE
2. Taiwan 2. BE
3. Others (Hong Kong, Malaysia and Macau) 3. Ht(FB - ERAEREM)
Segment revenues and results DEM AR EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by UTAXREBRIRURED> B2 AR ZE
reportable and operating segment. B
PRC Taiwan Others Total
B K BE =D | H 1t # ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FE R FTE R
For the year ended BHE-_Z——F
31 December 2011 +ZHA=+—HILEE
Revenue from external customers R B HIPEFE 2 W A 473,234 110,503 7,558 591,295
Segment profit (loss) 7 & a7 (& 18) 187,248 34,925 (4,224) 217,949
Unallocated corporate expenses 7 # fig A 7] X H (53,306)
Unallocated income AR U = 9,004
Profit before tax R i Al R 173,647
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z-——+ZHA=+—HLEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. 2B B

Segment revenues and results (Continued) o EBUT A B EE (')
PRC Taiwan Others Total
MR K BE =0 H b st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T THE T THE T FE T

For the year ended HE-_Z—Z=F
31 December 2010 +ZB=+—HLFE

Revenue from external customers B INEEFE 2 WA 362,899 112,734 9,756 485,389
Segment profit (Ioss) o E R (E 1) 104,990 636 (12,551) 93,075
Unallocated corporate expenses Kk # fl A 7 X H (20,110)
Unallocated income B W = 2,883
Profit before tax RR Bt Al s A 75,848

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit
(loss) represents the profit earned (loss incurred) by each segment
without allocation of equity-settled share based payments, central
administration costs and directors’ salaries. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes

of resource allocation and performance assessment. Unallocated
income mainly includes interest income and exchange differences.

puj

AHRED Bz EF BEREM FERALA
SEEFREER - 2WENEER) A
EOWMIAMBMZBNREE ZEE) -
ERUTRIERAEDZEERD TR
PRITBHERARESHHN LABRER
PTERRBAFEODETELERREARS
CEHERE ABREAKZTEC/ENE
WA RE R ERE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information

2011 —E——-F
Amounts included in the measure % & 5 Kl =% 5 18 3t A
of segment profit or loss: T % FREE :
Depreciation of property, plant TBE -FHEK
and equipment REINE
Release of prepaid lease BogBAIEER
payments
Loss on disposal of property, HELTHE BER
plant and equipment REER
(Reversal of allowance) REFE(EERE)
allowance for obsolete R
inventories
Reversal of allowance on trade ESRENERREE
receivables [
2010 —E_—=f
Amounts included in the measure 2 383% R =K BB T A
of segment profit or loss: T % FR&E -
Depreciation of property, plantand T E » 5 Kk
equipment HREBITE

Release of prepaid lease payments #[El B A + it i & &

Loss on disposal of property, plant HE REZE » H 15 Kk
and equipment HEEE

Allowance for obsolete inventories [R & 17 & # 15

Impairment loss (reversal of g 5 e W R FOR &
allowance) on trade receivables EifE (B ERE)

Increase in fair value of investment % & ¥ % A 3 {& & N
properties

a kv B2~ 20 /N .
6. 7 & & &)
Hihn BPEHR

Segment

and

consoli-

dated

PRC Taiwan Others total
7R

B K pE =0 | Ht mEHBE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEx FE R FTE R
17,679 5,376 178 23,233
296 - - 296
2,479 647 50 3,176
(51) 2,864 (16) 2,797
- (972) - (972)
Segment

and

consoli-

dated

PRC Taiwan Others total
7R

W K BE =0 Hh mEHRE
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T TE T FET FE T
11,806 6,095 1,570 19,471
279 - - 279
1,194 6,222 761 8,177
12,268 13,679 1,462 27,409
1,402 (763) - 639
- (62) - (62)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z——F+=-BA=+—HBLEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information
The Group is principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and selling of
skin care, beauty and aromatherapeutic products and (b) provision
of skin treatments, beauty and spa services and skin care consulting
and beauty training. The analysis of the Group’s revenue by type
of business for the year are set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group’s non-current assets excluding available-for-sale
investments is presented based on the geographical location of the
assets as detailed below:

The PRC AR K BE
Taiwan =
Others Hb

The Group has a very wide customer base, no single customer
contributed more than 10% of the Group’s revenue for each of the
years ended 31 December 2010 and 2011.

7 2 E B @)

ih 13 & B
FEETENEQRERNESE 2
AREEEGROEANSEE 25
T 7K R R A B T2 WL U T R RS R
REY  AEBEBEBENINZER
g A B B B35 o

AEBETEEUHREEREZFRDE
EREEMEHERY  FRWOT :

2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FH T
246,371 212,937
56,807 60,205

262 463
303,440 273,605

AEEZEFERER LTHEE-FF
EAKRBEZE-_Z-TER_-_FT——
F+-A=+-BLFESFRARE
10% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZ_Z-——H+-A=1+T—-HLEHFE

7. OTHER INCOME 7. =

Interest on bank deposits RITFERAE

Rental income from investment properties KEREYWE2HERFE

Rental income from other properties and REEMYERREZ
equipment HeWwz

Financial refunds (Note) B 7% 3R K (T &F)

Increase in fair value of investment properties 1% & ¥ 2 » F {& # i

Others Hfh

Note: Pursuant to the local practice of the finance bureau of the provinces in which Bt 5F :

certain of the PRC subsidiaries operate, the PRC subsidiaries will receive
financial refunds from other taxes paid in the form of government grants by
way of negotiation with the relevant finance bureau. However, the refunds are
subject to review annually. It is therefore uncertain if these subsidiaries will
continue to be eligible for such financial refunds in the future.

2011 2010
—e--%| =—®B-%%
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH F B
9,004 2,774
152 217
1,266 2,841
5,569 9,359
= 62
2,036 2,270
18,027 17,523

RETPEAEETHBEARAEEMESE
DB BRBPIFEANELES - ZRH
B ARBEME D RS RER R BREE
BE REAMCHABRAEBRFHYUA
AESHBEER - AN ERERESF
FH-El THEEZEWEQRAR
BEBCERZEREUBER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z——F+=-BA=+—HBLEE

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January

2008 onwards.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, certain of
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are exempted from PRC income tax
for two years starting from their first profit-making year, followed by
a 50% reduction for the next three years (the “Tax Holiday”). The
Tax Holiday continued on the implementation of the current EIT Law
using the tax rate of 25%. The Tax Holiday was expired in 2011.

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8. 5
The charge comprises: THBE:

Taxation in PRC R AP E 2z % E
Current year RKEE
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETR
Dividend withholding tax R F 78 40 B

Taxation in Taiwan REBZHE
Current year KEE
Underprovision in prior years BAFERETR
Dividend withholding tax % 7 78 40 Bt

Taxation in Hong Kong REBZHIE
Current year KEE

Deferred taxation (note 27) IE FE Bt 18 (M 2£27)

Current year KEE

Attributable to a change in tax rate BEEETH

i B 2
2011 2010
—®8--%| =—E2-27F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FTE T
25,242 27,118
4,732 4,285
9,014 -
38,988 31,403
6,323 2,288
174 4,825
- 989
6,497 8,102
1,018 -
11,972 5,175
- 458
11,972 5,633
58,475 45,138

B25% o

REPECERSRETREREH
ENREERESHEZBEREG  DEM
BRARAB-Z2ENF-—A-—BAEBZHRER

REDEMEBEEIRRAS  NEBET
TEMBAREEEENFERER

RERTEREHEME HE=FER
HE0% (BB RMEHM]) -BITLEMRS
REBTREBEDBWIBEZERY
BEH -BHBHEHECR - -——FF
i o
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z——F+=-BA=+—HBLEE

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, dividend
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by PRC subsidiaries that are received by non-PRC resident
entities from 1 January 2008 onwards. Dividend withholding tax of
approximately HK$9,014,000 (2010: Nil) was recognised.

Corporate Income Tax in Taiwan is charged at 17% in both years.
The reduction of the Corporate Income Tax in Taiwan to 17% was
approved on 15 June 2010. The new rate is effective retrospectively
from 1 January 2010 onwards.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax

FEHHAEZ®
BREFEEBEFARRG BTN
F—A—HAE - FPEEREXEKREZ
TENBARIREZEFNMEIRZ
BREAHMIBRAENR - RFAFHNHRL
9,014,000 T(ZZE—ZF  MEER

=]
o ©

BEBRERSHNZMEFERI7%:T
E-GEBCEMBRAE1TRIR -
—ZEFRATHERME-HREHZ
Z-ZE-A-BBEPEN-

BERANGHEZMEFE Z AT ERB
@ H16.5% =T & °

FEEREXHEGS2EAWRSERFAT

per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows: BRHAERNYEREWNT
2011 2010
—E——F —E-2F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT F & T
Profit before tax R B AT & F 173,647 75,848
Tax at domestic rates applicable to profits of FEZRHBE RN EBEEFEF -
taxable entities in the countries concerned REMBRETE
(Note) (B ) 46,816 21,750
Tax effect of expenses not deductible FHNMBEIEHZBREELE
for tax purpose 10,605 9,616
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBUREZBKEEE
for tax purpose (4,255) (8,547)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REAREEEZHREZE 14,524 20,972
Tax effect of tax exemption and concession EF&HE FTHE KEKE A 7
granted to certain PRC subsidiaries under REERRHER SRR
the Tax Holiday 2R E (32,482) (20,525)
Underprovision in respect of prior years BEFEREBETLR 4,906 9,110
Dividend withholding tax B F 78 0 B 9,014 989
Deferred tax liabilities arising on undistributed PR RBEEMB AR ZKDIK
profits of PRC subsidiaries BAMELECEEH BEAR 9,347 6,315
Decrease in opening deferred tax asset MYIELEHREBEEERBRAB =R
resulting from a decrease in applicable T B T R A
tax rate - 458
Tax charge for the year AREEHREZH 58,475 45,138

Note: As the Group operates in several different tax jurisdictions, separate
reconciliations using the domestic tax rate in each individual tax jurisdiction
have been aggregated and presented.

i ARAEERSETEARBALEELE
X% UREENRE I EREE X
FHZBYHKRESHALZT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z——F+=-BA=+—HBLEE

9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

AN FEEFZHERGEA) T 3

Profit for the year has been arrived at after

charging (crediting): BIEE SR
Staff costs: BIA:
Directors’ emoluments (note 10) EEME (FFE10)
Other staff salaries and allowances Hih & T HM R IZ8L
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, BIRBAGEMHR
excluding directors: TEEES:

— T 28 it ;5 & (B 5 24(b))

— T 88 18 A 5t 8 (M &£ 24(a))
IR R A E R0 AR

(FF A 47 BB %)

— defined contribution plans (note 24(b))

— defined benefit plan (note 24(a))
Equity-settled share based payments

(included in administrative expenses)

Total staff costs ETIRAEEE

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment T B E - WZE R EZHEITE
Release of prepaid lease payments BEgRALHBEER

Auditor’s remuneration 2B B &

Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEFTHE KRER
equipment REEE

Research and development costs o 3% B AR

Allowance for obsolete inventories REFERE

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense E A R X 2 FE KA
Net exchange loss ENEEFHE
(Reversal of allowance) impairment loss on ESREWRFBEERE

(BEEE)
IHEHEREREBR

trade receivables
Impairment loss on available-for-sale

investments
Write off of trade receivables E 5 FE U BR X oA
Advertising and promotion expense EEREERAX

2011 2010
= i —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx TB T
5,498 5,355
97,927 108,377
16,689 13,597
468 606
30,154 -
150,736 127,935
23,233 19,471
296 279
3,099 2,821
3,176 8,177
3,250 1,330
2,797 27,409
119,365 102,598
1,154 109
(972) 639

- 3,926

1,811 409
56,467 65,496
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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10.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the twelve (2010: fifteen)

directors were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Fees
(Other emoluments

Selaries and other benefts
Contrbutions to retirement benefits scheme
Discrefionary and performance

related incentive payments

(notei)
Waver of fees

Total emoluments

Fees
Qther emoluments
Seleries and
other benefits
Contributions to
retirement benefits
scheme
Discretionary and

performance related
incentive payments

(note i)
Walver of fees

Total emoluments

e
EES
AbEA
E#EA
RED

hERER
HA%E
itdl
(&)

k3

ne
Efhiie
FeREMER
BUEATAER
HEREEHY
2By
(W aii)

Hes®

Dr.TSAl Mr.LEE
Yen-Yu  Ming-Ta
BRT  2HE

Bt b

HKS'000  HKS'000

Tén TEn
1,000 700
- 299
- 6
- (700)
1,000 305

10.EEB &
ENSER TR (ZE—ZFF .+ 5
B)EEzBE0T :

BE-E-——S+t-A=+t-HLEE

Mr. M.
Gregory Francis
Michael Mr.  Ms.NG Ms.  GOUTEN- Ms.
Dr.SU ZELUCK  Patrick Shieu FENG MACHER  Su-Mei Mr.CHEN

DTSl MrLEE  Chien-  Dr.SU Gregory  Thomas Yeing  Janine  Francis  THOMP- Ruey-  Mr. YANG Total

Yen-Yu MingTa  Cheng  Sh-Hsyu  Michael ~SIEWERT  Chrisina  Junguan GOUTEN- SON Long  Tze-Kaing 2011

BRI ZHE  HEW  BHF ZECK  KEE  RFE EEn MACHER FEE  REE BTl it
fit b fit it b3 k4 1t 7t b1 1t b3 %% —E3--£
HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
THT TER TR TR TER TERT TER TR TEm TR TER TER TER
1,000 700 600 600 - - - - 240 %40 40 240 3,860

- 362 1,034 926 - - - - o o o - 232

- 6 6 4 - - - - - - - - 16
L T T S R
1,000 368 1,640 1,530 - - - - 240 240 40 40 549

BE-Z2-BE+-A=+-HLEE

Mr. Mr.
Gregory Francis
Michael M Ms.NG Ms.  GOUTEN- Ms.
Dr.SU ZELUCK  Patrick Shigu FENG  MACHER  Su-Mei Mrs. CHEN
Chien- Dr.SU  Gregory  Thomas Yeng  Jaine  Francis  THOMP-  Mr.CHEN Mr.YANG  Mr.YEH Shigh  Mr. CHEN Total
Cheng  Sh-Hsyu ~ Michael  SIEWERT ~ Christina  Junguan ~ GOUTEN- SON  Ruey-Long Tze-Kaing  Liang-Fei ~ Shu-Chen Ching 2010
BEd  EeB UK REE  RFE BEL MACHR BEE  REE BRI ERE REMY  #F &
Bt Bt b3 b3 Tt & hit:3 7t hi:3 hit:3 pit3 1t it -5-%%
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tér TR TEx THr TEx TEr TErn TEx THr TEn TEr TErn TEx THEn
(ote)  fotel)  (ote] (ot  (oted]  (noted)  [notei]
(W& OR&) (R (WER) (M) ORsti) (W&

600 600 - - - - 220 20 20 220 2 2 36 3,866
978 897 - = - - - - - - - = - 2,174

5 4 = = = = = = = = = = = 15

= = - = = = = - = = = (700)
1,583 1,501 - - - - 220 20 20 220 2 2 36 5,355

©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZ_Z-——H+-A=1+T—-HLEHFE

10.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER, Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON, Mr. CHEN Ruey-
Long and Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing were appointed as directors of the Company
on 1 February 2010.

(if) Mr. YEH Liang-Fei, Mrs. CHEN Shieh Shu-Chen and Mr. CHEN Ching
resigned as directors of the Company on 1 February 2010.

(iii) Executive directors and non-executive directors are entitled to a management
bonus aggregately not exceeding 15% of the audited consolidated profit
attributable to owners of the Company in respect of that financial year of the
Group, as recommended by the Remuneration Committee.

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, Mr.
LEE Ming-Ta waived his director fee for the year of approximately
HK$700,000 respectively.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office during the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2011.

10.EE 0 € w0

A

()  Francis GOUTENMACHER & 4 + B £ 1B &
T REBAEERBFIEER-Z—F
E_HA-—HEZEARERQATES-

iy EREBEE BRAADLLIREBTLTER
- ZFE_F—HBEAQATES-

(i) REFHNZEESZREH HATESRIEH
TESAREURAHATEBARASEY
BEEZKBERARRAEEARGEGEE
M16% 2 EEEIEAL -

BE-Z——F+-A=+—HLFE
R—ZE-—ZTFE+_A=+—HILEE"
ZHELEDFIRERRF - ESHES
#700,000 8 JT °

RBE-F-FTFR=-F-——F+=H
St-ALFE FAREREREES
e FAMBARERRE %2R
B =5 o T S 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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11.EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
none of them (2010: one) is director of the Company whose
emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 10 above. The
emoluments of the five (2010: four) individuals were as follows:

Salaries and other benefits HeRHEMER
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme 3 4k 18 Fl 5t 2| £ &%
Share-based payment expense B A0 13 =B X

The emoluments of the five (2010: four) were within the following

11EEMNE
AEBLEReEFMALTERILE(Z
E-—ZF  —Z)ARFES F2iNE
HFEERLEYMEFIOREE-ERZ(=ZZ
—EFE N E)ATZEEOT :

2011 2010
—g—-%| —T-%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T T
15,152 12,953

53 36

26,863 =
42,068 12,989

FE(CE-2RHF ODA)RSFMAL

bands: ZHENFUTEHE :
2011 2010
—e——-%| —T-%TF
Headcount Headcount
A" A"
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7t £ 2,000,000 7% 7T = 2
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 /& Jt £ 3,500,000 JT 1
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7 Jt & 5,500,000 JT 1 -
HK$6,000,001 — HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 7 Jt & 6,500,000 JT 1 1
HK$8,500,001 — HK$9,000,000 8,500,001 7 Jt & 9,000,000 7 7T 1 -
HK$18,500,001 — HK$19,000,000 18,500,001 7 7t 2 19,000,000 7% 7T 1 =

©
~
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z——F+=-BA=+—HBLEE

12.

-
w

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the profit attributable to the
owners of the Company of approximately HK$115,123,000 (2010:
HK$31,303,000) and on the number of 2,002,100,932 (2010:
2,002,100,932) ordinary shares of the Company in issue during the
year.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for 2011 does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s share options because the
exercise price of those options was higher than the average market
price in 2011. No diluted earnings per share for 2010 was presented
since there are no outstanding share options for 2010.

.DIVIDENDS

Dividends recognised as distribution during
the year:
Interim dividend, paid
— HK$0.035 per share
(2010: HK$0.035 per share)
Final dividend, paid
— HK$0.045 per share for 2010
(2010: HK$0.04 per share for 2009)

2K Y H R -

& 1R 0.03578 7T)
2K 13 R 89 Bk R —

F1R0.0438 T)

A final dividend of HK$0.050 per share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2011 (2010: final dividend of HK$0.045 per
share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2010), amounting
to HK$100,105,000 (2010: HK$90,094,000) in aggregate has
been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in general meeting.

FABRBEHD IR ZBKRA :

BRO0BBR(ZE—ZFF:

ZE-ZEFBER0.0458 T
—ER-BFE . _EENE

12.8KR&87

AABDEEAEBESREXREBR DR E
KD FHEE AEALEF 115,123,000
T (=ZF—F 4 :31,303,000/8 T) KA A
AFEARAL B TEERE2,002100,932 K
(Z=Z2—Z 4 :2,002,100,932 ) =+ & -

R-B——% SRBSEAZHEL
EBERAAARREBGE BEAZ
ERRETEEBER-BE——E2F
Y THE MR B — B E N KT
ARE RLWEH_-_F-TE2ER
8B -

13. 1% A

2011 2010
—g--5 =®B-%%
HK$’000 HK$’000
F# F B
70,074 70,074
90,094 80,084
160,168 150,158

EFTEENEBEE-_ZE——F+=A
ET-BLEERGTRERAESR
0050 B T(ZZE—ZEF  BEZ_ZE—F%
F+- A=+t HLEEEXRBRANER
0.045% 7t) » A £#£100,105,00058 T (==
—Z & 190,094,000/ T)  HMEFRER
RBRRREHE
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14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14.

FAIR VALUE ANEE

At 1 January 2010 R-ZZB-—ZTF—H—H
Exchange realignment fE % 5

Increase in fair value recognised in REZEIZZ2AFEEE M

profit or loss

44

At 31 December 2010 T—-—FEFE+=-HF=+

Exchange realignment

EiRd
||
i

At 31 December 2011 R-ZZE——F+ZA=+

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2011 and 2010 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on those dates by Euro-Asia Real Estate Appraisers Firm,
independent qualified professional valuers not connected with

the Group. Euro-Asia Real Estate Appraisers Firm are members

of the Institute of Valuers, and have appropriate qualifications and
recent experience in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations. The valuation was arrived at using the direct comparison
approach by reference to market evidence of recent transaction
prices for similar properties in the similar locations and conditions.

The carrying value of investment properties shown above are
situated on freehold land outside Hong Kong.

REYZE

HK$’000
FTER

4,710
479

62

—H 5,251

(134)

—H 5,117

FEBZREMER-ZE——FR=-F
—EFE+ZA=+-RZAFEDH
REASEYBRAE B LIAERERX
HEMREFDELBEMBSEHERE
TREEREESH BETBHEME
R Bt & 3 35 BT & 1k (B AT 2 & (Institute of
Valuers) 8 & - BB EER  RETH
HEEBELERUME LR -BHEM
BEREELBRET DESZEAESR
PR RN E DR ZER TS
HEFH -

FRBRENERMERBFBFLRNE BRI
ZIKAERELH

©
©
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15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 5.1 8BE BEEKE

100 Furniture,
> Freehold Leasehold Plant and Motor  fixturesand ~ Construction
E land Buildings improvements machinery vehicles equipment  in progress Total
5 KE #E
é XASELS B2 HENR RERKE hE ET | EBIE @z
o HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TEn TEn TEn Tén TER TERL TEn TEn
g COST KA
T?? At 1 January 2010 WZE-E§-F-A 15,932 165,035 70,379 26,631 5,737 51,198 169 335,081
g Exchange realignment ERAE 1,600 7,643 2,747 1,190 329 3,10 715 17,329
> Additions % - - 2,389 5,601 - 5,532 23,646 37,168
§_> Disposals HE = = (39,458) (5,880) (706) (15,303) - (61,347)
)
N At 31 December 2010 RZE-EF
= +ZA=1-H 17,632 172,678 36,057 21,542 5,360 44532 24,530 328,231
Exchange realignment [ (446) 5,252 568 992 70 330 79 7,485
Additions iR - - 8,450 5,324 188 11,608 25,167 50,737
Disposals HE = - (10911) (835) (1,104) (8,390) - (21,240)
Transfer 44 - 6,482 16,787 8,079 - 7,726 (39,074) -
At 31 December 2011 R=Z--%
+ZA=1-H 17,086 184,412 50,951 41,102 4,514 55,806 11,342 365,213
DEPRECIATION il
At 1 January 2010 WZE-EF-F-A = 35,882 31,503 13,928 2,203 33,810 - 17,321
Exchange realignment EAE = 2,122 688 559 157 2,274 - 5,800
Provided for the year EREE - 4,518 6,794 2,095 725 5,339 - 19,471
Bliminated on disposals A ER M - - (31,318) (3719 (254) (11,148) - (46,439)
At 31 December 2010 R-E-ZF
+ZA=1+-AH - 42,622 7,667 12,858 2,831 30,275 - 96,153
Exchange realignment ERRZ - 974 159 402 33 (6) - 1,562
Provided for the year FRiE = 5,509 6,698 1,682 663 8,681 - 23,233
Eliminated on disposals REERH# - - (9,209) (732) (745) (6,155) - (16,841)
At 31 December 2011 R-E--F
+ZB=1+-H - 49,005 5315 14,210 2,782 32,79 - 104,107
CARRYING VALUFS REE
At 31 December 2011 R-E--F
+ZA=1-H 17,086 135,407 45,636 26,892 1,782 23,011 11,342 261,106
At31 December 2010 R=ZF-FE
+ZHA=1-H 17,632 130,156 28,390 14,684 2,529 14,257 24,530 282,078
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16.

—E-—H+-A=t-HLHFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
The carrying values of freehold land and buildings shown above are

situated on: THE:

15.7°8E BER

Lk X R £ i AR T AR B L R

RPEBAEREBEFH L ER
BEAEzLH
REEBFAEZKAXELH

Land in the PRC held under medium-term
land use rights
Freehold land in Taiwan

B0

2011 2010

S i
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBR TR
123,048 116,873
29,445 30,815
152,493 147,688

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at
the following rates per annum:

RERBIRIN LRFBE BERRK
FEERAESEZUTFRIFE:

Freehold land Nil KA ZERE L i i
Buildings 40 - 55 years or period of the BF 40— 5555
lease; if shorter HEFHzREE
Leasehold improvements The shorter of the unexpired HEMR REMEEFHR MG
period of the lease and STAEAFHIE
estimated useful life of 10F 2B EE
3 to 10 years
Plant and machinery 5—-10 years 5 & s 5—10%
Motor vehicles 3 - 5 years RE 3—5%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2 — 15 years RE - #£ERRKE 2-15F
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. 5Lt HEER
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FH& T
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise AZEB 2z B A+t B EREER
leasehold land rights in the PRC under FREE RBE LA HER i R
medium-term land use rights BzHE L FERRE 10,010 9,925
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEBRAZINOT
Non-current asset IRBEE 9,710 9,636
Current asset REBEE 300 289
10,010 9,925

Yy
o
-
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17.GOODWILL 17.8 &
HK$’000
FE T
COST DN
At 1 January 2010 R-—ZE—Z=F—H—H 29,025
Exchange realignment & 5 R 807
At 31 December 2010 N-—E-—ZFEHE+=-A=+—H 29,832
Exchange realignment [E & 867
At 31 December 2011 R=ZFB-——F+=-B=+-—8H 30,699
IMPAIRMENT B
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 and RZ-Z-—ZTF-—-A—-H -ZZ—ZF+_A
31 December 2011 =t+t—-HBR=ZE——®+=-B=+—H 3,192
CARRYING VALUES BR M B
At 31 December 2011 R-ZB——F+=ZA=+—H 27,507
At 31 December 2010 N-E—ZFF+=-B=+—H 26,640

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated
to an individual cash generating unit, namely, sale of cosmetic
products in the PRC Cash Generating Unit (“CGU”). The carrying
amounts of goodwill as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 is allocated
to this CGU.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on
a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period using a declining growth rate and cash flows over
five years are extrapolated assuming no growth rate, and discount
rate of 5% (2010: 5%). One key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is based
on the unit’s past performance and management’s expectations for
the market development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of this unit to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of this unit.

BRBERAMS BHECIREPERK
EENEEELEN(REEEEM]
MEEXREM R-ZB-——FKk=
E-ZEHE+-A=+t-BRzHEEREE
DoBERREEEEM-

ReELENUNTRESHCREER
BEBE -FEAZRBREZECHE
WEFUBAENREREEAR  BRR
BERTR MIFHERZREEBNE
BRLBERREN(ZFE—FF 1 5%)
BB RFHE MEBERRDBBABTE
BREMN - EFAAUTBBZEBTETY
RMEBRX - EREEMESEZS —
EFERREGHRERA L (B
RHEHEEARENR)EHE  FEM
ARASELBENZBERRREERE
HmERRCHANEE-EEEMERE
EFRZEBRRZEMNSETREFH T
SEYZREELENU 2 REARLERE N
ZREELEBEN2TIRE S5 -
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18.AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

19.

20.

Available-for-sale investments comprise:

Unlisted equity securities, at cost

The above unlisted investments represent investments in unlisted
equity securities issued by private entities incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and Cayman Islands which are engaged in investment
holding and online health consultancy service, respectively. They
are measured at cost less accumulated impairment at the end of
the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that the fair values cannot be measured reliably. The
investments are fully impaired in prior year.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Finished goods

18.AHEERSE
R

FLETRAFES  BEAE

R4 %
SR

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables

Less: allowance for doubtful debts

Prepayments
Other receivables

Total trade and other receivables

B 5 EWIRMK
o RAREE

BN ®RE
H fitb F& U B X

2011
—E——F
HK$’000
TET

2010
—E-FF
HK$’000
TR

FHFFTREENABEBREER
HEeERSEMEY 2
MR LREERERE 2L ABERET
FETRARBSHNRE - BARZFFL
TRENMGITEELAFEEEER X
RAEERBTHITEFTEQIFE &
BZEFRLTRENSREHNBEEA
BRANKRRAFBETE ZERER

FREREEZER

BEFERHFE-
19.7 8

2011 2010

—®B-—%| =—E-%F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FTET FE T

21,803 26,707

18,457 20,018

40,260 46,725

=5
20BE 5 R HitFEUERTR

2011 2010

—®——-%| —T-%TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHER TR

27,941 21,392
(1,634) (2,828)

26,307 18,564

9,838 9,551

19,746 16,277

55,891 44,392

BESREMEBYRERRAE

Yy
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

E-F-—FT-A=t-HLEE

= —=

20.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group allows a credit period ranging from one to six months

to its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts presented based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

Within 180 days 180H A
181 days to 365 days 181 H £2365H

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal
credit system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer. Limits to customers are reviewed
regularly. The majority of the trade receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired have no history of defaulting on repayments.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$192,000 (2011: Nil) which are past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss as at 31 December 2010 because management is
of the opinion the fundamental credit quality of these customers has
not deteriorated. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances. The average age of these receivables is within 180 days.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but
not impaired

181 days to 365 days 181 H £365H

20.B 5 K H b FE W BR R )

AEERTHESEF-—EXERAZE
EM-RBESHELEERNBRRREE
ZESRUERRERBEAH2I ZIRE
DA o

2011 2010
—g--5| —®-%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F# FERT
26,307 18,372

- 192

26,307 18,564

BEXAMFEFAN  AEEERARNIBE
EHE HEEEEFZFREERERE
EFEEFER -FEFEEHEMRF XK
BrRABRRBEZE S ERRRL
BIERERLH-

R-ZE—ZEF+-A=1+—H XxKH
CESEWERREHREERNRSHELE
EHCAmMASEEYETIERESEE
BEZEWNERRREDES $£192,000%
T(ZE——F &) REREEER
AZEREFNERNEEBERZULKRER-
AEEYEFZELE RS EEMIEM

MmeZERWRRZTFHRE A1808 -

EEBERBEZE S ERERN
Z RR R

2011 2010
—g--%| =—T-%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHR FER

- 192
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20.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

20.E 5 & H fit F& Y BR FX (@)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts FEREBESH
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Balance at the beginning of the year F 1) & &R 2,828 2,688
Impairment loss recognised on receivables REWRERERERZREESS = 639
Amounts written off as uncollectible FOWEERER2EME S (222) (499)
Reversal of allowance on receivables R BERRD (972) -
Balance at the end of the year FRE 1,634 2,828

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$1,634,000 (2010:
HK$2,828,000), which have been identified with financial difficulties.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

21.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK

BALANCES AND CASH

Pledged bank deposits

The pledged bank deposits amounting to HK$443,000 (2010:
HK$432,000) are interest-free deposits which represent deposits
pledged to the bank as security for the obligation under the rental
agreement. The pledge will be released upon the termination of the
relevant rental agreement.

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash comprises cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less. The amounts bear interest at market rates which range from
0.03% to 3.05% per annum (2010: 0.001% to 1.2% per annum).

At 31 December 2011, the Group’s bank deposits of US$1,223,000
(2010: US$12,496,000) (equivalent to approximately HK$9,552,000
(2010: HK$97,260,000)) was denominated in a currency other than

the functional currency of the relevant group entity.

21.

REBETFEEENREEZREVR
N 2 B 5 FE R X 45 88 & 1,634,000
BT (ZE—ZFF 2,828,000/ ) * &
EEYENZSEGBEEEMEKRR -

EERARTERRITE
ErRRE

EEFRITER
EERMRTERACKFFRTELRA
ENMBETEAZERNEEERESHE
#443,000/8 t(=ZF — = F ! 432,000
T o B ENREHEEEHRERL LI
& B o

BRITHEEFRES
RITHEERESERAEEMFRESR
REHB=MAERXRUARAZEHRTE
R ZERBERFRNZFO0IEZES3.05E
ZHMGHEFBE(ZE—FF  FHX
0.001EZE1.2[E)

R-ZZ-——5+-A=+—-R XKH
RITHERB1,223000KT(ZE—FF !
12,496,000 % 7t) (48 & M £ 9,552,000 &
T(=ZZE—FF :97,260,000/8 7)) » J3
REESEEER NGB U2 EES

petr

5_0
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o
a
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22.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22.

Trade payables EZEMERX

Deposits from customers EFHE

Other tax payables H th & 14 i 18

Other payables H fh & {4 BR X

Total trade and other payables ESREMENIRRARE

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

Within 180 days 180H A

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that
all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

23.DEFERRED INCOME 23.

Prepaid treatment fees ENERE

Deferred income represents the receipts via credit cards, cheques
and cash from sales of beauty services to customers and recognised
in the profit or loss upon provision of the services to the customers.

BESRHEMEMNERR

2011 2010
—e--%| =—®B-%%
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH F B
22,349 13,032
24,451 20,209
8,608 8,086
80,424 84,775
135,832 126,102

RESHEEAEAI 2EZRIRRRR
SERMEVNZREDHTWT :

2011 2010
—®--% =—T-%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THR T8
22,349 13,032

BEERZPEHEERROR T &H
ERVMBEBREERE  UBRRAAE
EARERREFERRAEM -

i 3E WX =

2011 2010
—E-—F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FaE T FET
6,476 10,555

EERSENFEFHEEXTREMES
FRAF XERBEWRZHE AR
MEFREREHETESRER -
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24.RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS 24 3R K 18 R 5T 2

(a) Defined benefit plan
The Group’s Taiwan subsidiaries participate in a central pension
scheme providing benefits to certain employees in accordance
with the Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan. The
Group has an obligation to ensure that there are sufficient funds
in the scheme to pay the benefits earned. The Group currently
contributes at 2% of the total salaries as determined and
approved by the relevant government authorities. Under the
scheme, the employees are entitled to retirement benefits equal
to two months’ salary for each year of service for the first 15
years and one month’s salary for each year of service following
the 15 years, but not more than 45 months’ salary in aggregate
on the attainment age of 60. No other post-retirement benefits
are provided.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the pension scheme
is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the
present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted.
The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation as at 31
December 2011 and 2010 was carried out by a qualified staff
member of PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan, who is a member
of The Actuarial Institute of the Republic of China. The actuarial
valuation indicates that the Group’s obligations under this
defined benefit retirement scheme are 2% (2010: 2%) covered
by the deposits paid with the Bank of Taiwan, Ltd.

(i)  The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the
actuarial valuations were as follows:

Discount rate AL I8 =&
Expected return on plan assets STEEEEESOR=R
Expected rate of salary increases FEHEF S MNEE

The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of
plan assets was HK$2,014,000 (2010: HK$1,657,000).

(a) =& & E

TEEBRENBLAGREREL D
BEZ(LIEBIT)S MNP RRKE 5
2o REERHEN -KAEH
EEARBHEERAVESIAE
ERESCRBA -AEERIZER
BEERBERMEFSHETE2%
EHMR-REBETE EERE15
EREFESFZEHEERMEAR
FHzRKEA > BZI5EREF
EazEBRBFERA—EAHH
HEORE SR T BBISEA FH
o AKEUYEREHAEMENRER
F o

AEERBRSH B AL MBS
FE ONREESRERBENMR
BB EESZ AR EATET
SHENE FHEANEMEBUET
RE MEATHEEZAFES
SR B E A EREE
4R P T 5T B A A A LA R
R-B——FR-B—FF+=
B=t+—AZREGERANE
HOEBM2ABRETET &
AEERERESEIRE - BY
5 E T+ 7 2 B B B A R 4R
HEETEBB2%(ZB— 25
2%) HEHFEBRTERAT
SRS TR

() FRAETEREMMERSIZN
T :

2011 2010
—E-—F —E-ZF
1.80% 1.75%
1.80% 1.75%
3.00% 2.50%

BEMEEARTIEETE
£2,014,0008 T(Z&E—F
£ 11,657,000 7T) °

Yy
o
~
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24 . RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (continued)

(a) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss in respect of the
defined benefit plans are as follows:

Current service cost 35 B AR 7% AL AR
Interest on obligations R B AR A

Expected return on plan assets TEEEESHOR=E
Net actuarial loss FEEBBFSE

(i)  The amounts included in the consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the Group’s obligations in
respect of its defined benefit plans are as follows:

Present value of funded defined benefit 2 & & € & 58 1@ Fl
obligations BB RE

Fair value of plan assets STEEEAFE

Net unrecognised actuarial losses RERARBEEEFEH

Net liability arising from defined benefit EREEBMNEKEL =
obligations EEFE

24 3B K38 A
(a) EEERE A 2 @)

(i

&t &l

RESZRAEBRBAEER

ZEREWMT :
2011 2010
—EB-—F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
247 281
240 312
(29) 3)
10 16
468 606

(i)

AEBEBERBANFEMEE
EBEHEETAGSHBMRR

®E BAMT
2011 2010
—®--% =—%-%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH T8
13,810 13,631
(2,014) (1,657)
(1,787) (1,481)
10,009 10,493
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZ_Z-——H+-A=1+T—-HLEHFE

24 . RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (continued)

(a) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

(iv) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligations in the current year were as follows:

At 1 January

Current service cost

Interest on obligations

Benefits paid

Actuarial losses (gains)

Exchange differences on foreign plans

At 31 December

®R—A—H

3B B AR 7% AN
BHFE

2 118 7
fBEE R (KR aH)
BN ET BIE =

R+=-ZA=+—8H

(v)  Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the

current year were as follows:

At 1 January

Contributions from the employer
Expected return on plan assets
Benefits paid

Actuarial (losses) gains

Exchange differences on foreign plans

At 31 December

Actual return on plan assets

®—A—H
LER
HUEEESEBE
BB A
CEACEONTE

BHNGHEIE R E8

R+=ZA=+—H
AEEECERER

24 3B K38 A
(a) EEERE A 2 @)

(iv)

&t &l

RAFEZEERANELRE

BEMT

2011 2010
—E-—F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
13,631 13,550

247 281

240 312
(287) (1,603)
342 (180)

(363) 1,271

13,810 13,631

REAFEZHEEELAFEE
BT

2011 2010
—®--F| —B-B%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE R FE T
1,657 130

690 3,001

29 3
(287) (1,603)

(21) 7

(54) 119

2,014 1,657

8 10

Yy
(=}
©

Ehy - - BUHBHBGFERE
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24.RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (Continued)
(a) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

(v)

(Continued)

The directors’ assessment of the expected return is based
on historical return trends and analysts’ predictions of the
market for the assets in the next twelve months.

The major categories of plan assets, and the percentage
of the fair value at the end of the reporting period for each
category are as follows:

Deposits with financial institutions RTFHBEEEZRS
Short term bills EHEE

Stocks iz 19

Bonds &%

Others Hh

(b) Defined contribution plans

(i

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the HK MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance and Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme under the Labour Standards Law (as amended)
in Taiwan (the “TW MPF Scheme”). The HK MPF Scheme
and the TW MPF Scheme are defined contribution
retirement scheme administered by independent trustees.
Under the HK MPF Scheme and TW MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% and 6%, respectively,
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$20,000 for the HK MPF
Scheme while there is no cap to monthly income under
the TW MPF Scheme. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately.

24 R K &8 F 51 &) (o)

(a) <= %@ & & @

v)

()
EE R E BTG R
BAEREBERHAEYE
ERART @A 2T SHEN
47 o

HEREZXIBERURES
RREEMEEEA 2 ATE
BokOT

2011 2010
—g--5| —®-%F
% %

B B
23.87 29.48

7.61 11.78

10.04 7.04

11.45 10.95

47.03 40.75
100.00 100.00

(b) =X K5 &

(i)

AEERBEERFIMELAES
TEGABRERBREBRAE
EHEANEACEER LR
S ABELTE(EBEES
FED ZRESAEZHEE
FEEBIRLIBEHMEAES
FE(aERBERTED &
BEBEESTTEARAEBRE S
BAEAHBUGTIAEECEH
HMBEKRTE - RIEFBRE
B ReaERELE &
FRIEEZBEAOE D BIE
HHEEREEEBHKRASYRK
BN BERESE
28 AEBEBWA LR A20,000
B omMeEEBESTEAE
EF A WA LR o 524 7 AD
BERERRNA -
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24 . RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (continued)

(b) Defined contribution plans (Continued)

(if)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of the state-managed retirement benefit
plan operated by the PRC government. As stipulated by
the regulations of the PRC, these relevant subsidiaries
participate in various defined contribution retirement
plans organised by the relevant authorities for its PRC
employees. The employees are entitled to retirement
pension calculated with reference to their basic salaries on
retirement and their length of service in accordance with
the relevant government regulations. The PRC government
is responsible for the pension liabilities to these retired
staff. The Group is required to make contributions to the
retirement plans which are calculated based on certain
prescribed rates and the salaries, bonuses and certain
allowances of its PRC employees. The Group has no
other material obligations for the payment of pension
benefits associated with these plans beyond the annual
contributions described above.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$17,173,000 (2010:

24 3R K %8 A 51 2l ()
(b) EEEREA 2 &)

(i

AEETENBAREERT
BRAEEBREERKRE
MNetBHE-FENBLARACE
RFEDEERRAE  BETE
BES2NEEHEEERL
BoERENRBRKFE-EE
ERRBEBRBMAER  BE
ERBAFZERHEURMR
BEHWEBRAE - hE BT
BEBOZERAE THHERIAK
ToMAEEEARE TEEL
ZREPEEEZHE A
A TRMERAG BN
BREdz FEHMRN AEE
YHEEZESTEHER 2 H MR
KEANIRERERE-

sFABERZBHAR17,173,0008 T

—h
—h
—h

Ehy - - BUHBHBGFERE

HK$14,218,000) represents contributions paid on payable to these (ZZE—FF 14,218,000 t) » I AR&E
schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting period. MBRTETPREAENZESTE 2 #
E )
25.SHARE CAPITAL 25. g <
Number of
shares  Share capital
g =] [
HK$’'000
F#& T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREEIBIZEAR
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 R=—ZZE-—ZF—-—HF—H-
and 31 December 2011 —E-ZFEFE+ZHA=1+-HK
—_2—-——%4+=-"H=+—H 4,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTRHBE:
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 R—ZE-—ZFF—-—HF—H-
and 31 December 2011 ZTE-ZEF+ZR=T-HR
—_E—-——%+=-H=+—H 2,002,100,932 200,210
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26.SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholders on

11 March 2002, the Company has adopted a share option scheme
(the “Old Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives
to directors and eligible employees. Under the Old Scheme, the
Company may grant options to full-time employees (including
executive or non-executive Directors) of the Company or its
subsidiaries to subscribe for the shares at a consideration of HK$1
for each lot of share options granted. Options granted must be taken
up within 28 days of the date of grant. The Old Scheme will remain
valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 11 March 2002.

There were amendments to the Old Scheme as detailed in the
circular to shareholders dated 8 April 2011 and all amendments were
approved at annual general meeting on 13 May 2011 (*AGM”).

A new share option scheme (“New Scheme”) with terms exactly
same as the amended Old Scheme was also approved at the

AGM on 13 May 2011. Upon the approval of the New Scheme, the
amended Old Scheme was terminated at the AGM on 13 May 2011.

Options granted may be exercised during such period as would be
determined by the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
and notified to each grantee upon grant of the option, but in any
event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option.
The subscription price for shares under the New Scheme may be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any event
will not be less than the higher of: (a) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant of the option, which must be a business day; and

(b) the average of the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant option.

The Company may grant share options to specified participants
over and above the scheme mandate limit or the refreshed scheme
mandate limit referred to above subject to shareholders’ approval in
general meetings and the issue of a circular.

6.5 IR #E 5t &

RERRR-"ZZ_F=A+-HEB
ZEERBR ARACKMA-—BEAR
B (EFE) EERESEREE
KRESRUEB REEFE X027
AAaArrAaZEMBARZEREES
(BRBTESHAHFYUTES)RHRR
B HREfBRHRREUKRKE1IELIR
BRO FREDZRELARE LB H
EE8RRNER -EFEBR_-FF_
FZAt-HBTFHBEEEEN-

B8NS nERA =T ——F
MANBHERRZBR  BFFBETE
REZZEBE-——FAB+=ZBETHRRE
FRE(TRRBFRE) LEHE-

—HERREAZETENEZTE2HEEH
HARESBATHTIDTERBEHE
—EZ——FHEAT=HNRRBEKRE
LESHE - RIABBAER . E1
AEFERBBR-ZFT-——FHA+=
ANBRRBERELL-

ABREEARATREALNDESS(ES
ENREABRERRAELMNERARA
MABTERRE EEEFAERT
BARBRHIAREAHMET +F AT
E-REIRESTS ESSHNET
BRORBEEEYBERE EEEM
BRT RBEFRSLIRUATERZR
BE QREAREAPZARER
) ROEBMIXFESEREERRE
TE ROREEREEBRIRER Y
AAEE%A RORBIFAEAKRE
ERRFHKRTHE-

AARAEAEESRERIBBIER
FE PR BB 2 b SCAT 4l BB T ST B IR ERR B
ARE - HEARNSRRERRASHE
RTIsER -
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26.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise

of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the New Scheme and any other schemes of the Company (or the
subsidiary) must not exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities
of the Company (or the subsidiary) in issue from time to time. No
options may be granted under any schemes of the Company (or the
subsidiary) if this will result in the limit being exceeded.

At 31 December 2011, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the New
Scheme was 89,894,331 (2010: Nil) (representing 4.49% (2010:
0%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date). The total
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the New Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares issued and to
be issued in respect of which options granted and may be granted
to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted
to substantial shareholders or independent non-executive directors
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant in
excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital in issue or with an
aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million based on the closing price
of the shares at the date of each grant must be approved in advance
by the Company’s shareholders.

6.7 R EET 2@

REAREFERETQXALMEBELQFE
AEMABRERBERFTEZE R
TEARBETERT TRITHORS
RE TEBBEALARME QR TE
ERITHBERESN30% - Wil ER
FBoALEREAQXAAIMELTDNE
ATERERRE-

R-ZE——F+ZA=+—8 RE
FeTEECREEBMAMRITERRE
Z BB R 589,804 331 R(=ZZE—F
F8) HERAQXIEBRCRITRA
449% (= —FF 1 0%) c REAKR AT
BREREBAEHER - RIBH B AR B
RAREZHEEROAS FEEEAD
AEMEEDBEITRMEBI0%  KRERAD
ARREBEMERN REM—FARER
FRAUEKRTFEMALIRBREZE BT
REFRT2EBROEE  FE88E
AARREMAEEESZTRM 1% B E
ERXBBILIFDTESTRERZ (L8
BIREERBLET-—BAAHERKEEZ
AREBHEADTC BHTRA0.1%HE
ERLEEAZRAUMEFEZRRE
#{8 % 545,000,0008 T BELEARLD
)RR R AL o
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26.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
options granted under New Scheme held by employees during the
years ended 31 December 2010 and 2011:

Date of grant

RHB#

4 April 2011

—E-—FNMAWH

4 April 2011

—E-—FMAWH

4 April 2011

—E-—FHMAWH

4 April 2011

—Z-——FmAMA

Exercisable
period

TEH

4 April 2012 to
3 April 2021
—E-—_FWAMA
Z2TE_—F
MA=H

4 April 2013 to
3 April 2021
—E-=F0MAMA
E-E-—F
MA=H

4 April 2014 to
3 April 2021
—E-MEMNAMA
BB —F
MA=H

4 April 2015 to
3 April 2021
—E2-hAFMAMA
E2TE_—F
MA=H

Exercisable at the end of the year

FRETTE

Weighted average exercise price

mEFYTEE

Exercise
price

TEE

HK$1.90
1.90% 7T

HK$1.90
1.90 % T

HK$1.90
1.90% 7T

HK$1.90
1.90 % 7T

26.

i Iz 5T 2l )

TRERARBRBE-_FT-—BFR=
E-—Ft-A=t+-HBLEERAZ
RENTHELZAAARRERD

Outstanding Granted Forfeited Outstanding
at during during at

1.1.2011 the year the year 31.12.2011

»n

S —E——F
B +=8
—HA—H Eqr=[F
HMARITHE XEFERH FFERK i R 1T &
- 36,358,153 (400,420) 35,957,733

- 18,179,076 (200,210) 17,978,866

- 18,179,076 (200,210) 17,978,866

- 18,179,076 (200,210) 17,978,866

- 90,895,381 (1,001,050) 89,894,331

Nil

i

Nil HK$1.90 HK$1.90 HK$1.90

it 1.907% 7t 1.907% 7t 1.907% 7t




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z——F+=-BA=+—HBLEE

26.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company granted
options to certain employees to subscribe for a maximum of
90,895,381 shares and will be vested over a four-year period subject
to the achievement of performance targets determined by the Board
of Directors for each of the years. The options were granted on 4
April 2011. The estimated fair values of the options granted on that
date were approximately HK$66,815,376. These fair values were
calculated using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The inputs into
the model were as follows:

6.5 IR 1 5t &l

RBE-_ZE——F+-A=+—HBLHF
E AEEDETEEREIRBRS
90,895,381 M 2 RBHE BEERR
EENRERESEHMEENESFLRER
BEgNFARAEB AREER-_ZT——
FHANARE REBFRMBLHIRE
NP {EMALF 5668153768 T c ZE D
AEDEA-—EAHBEEEEGHE -
ERX@AHBEOT :

Share options Share options Share options Share options

with a vesting with a vesting with a vesting with a vesting

period of one year  period of two years period of three years  period of four years

EREHA BRESA BREA SEEA

-ENARE MERBIRE ZENARE mENDRE

Valuation date fEERH 4 April 2011 4 April 2011 4 April 2011 4 April 2011
“EZ--EMAMA —E--fMAMA -E--£MAMA —E--FMAMA

Exercise price k@ HK$1.90 HK$1.90 HK$1.90 HK$1.90
1.90% 1t 190% 1 1.90% 7t 1.90% 7t

Share price at date of grant RitiAHARE HK$1.90 HK$1.90 HK$1.90 HK$1.90
1.90% 1t 1.90% 1.90% 1.90% 7t

Contractual life of share options 32 R 3T 40 H8 IR 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years
105 108 108 105

Expected volatility B RIE 47.07% per annum 47.07% per annum 47.07% per annum 47.07% per annum
GE4707% FEAT07% §E47.01% GE4707%

Expected dividend yield AR = 4.47% 4.47% 4.47% 4.47%
4ATE 44T 4ATE 4ATE

Risk free rates #E R = 3.25% per annum 3.25% per annum 3.25% per annum 3.25% per annum
§E325E §E325E §EI25E §E325E

Expected volatility of the Company’s share prices were estimated by
the annualised historical volatility of the Company’s share price over
the past year.

The Group recognised total expense of approximately
HK$30,154,000 (2010:Nil) in relation to share options granted by the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2011.

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate the
fair value of the options. The valuables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate. The value of the option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.

ARABREFEHREIDURNRADEFR
BENBERBEMEE -

BE_Z——F+-A=+—-HLHF
E AEEBRIAEHAELAQATARENR
MBI X 530,154,000 T(Z&E —F
F )

—EXMAEERXE AR ERRRE
ATE-HERBREATFEZZBRE
BNERESZRENE RRARE
BEETERERZTELUAEME
Eo

Y
-y
a

Ehy - - BUHBHBGFERE



116

| LOg Woday [enuuy papwi] ABojouyoa ] -oig Aineag |eineN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z——F+=-BA=+—HBLEE

27.DEFERRED TAXATION 27 .JE it i 18
The following are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities recognised LTABSBEEERAZETEERL
and movements thereon during the current or prior years: HMEBEEIREGEUREZE:

Undistributed

Allowance  Revaluation Other earnings

for bad and of Defined  Unrealised  short-term of PRC

doubtful investment benefit profits on temporary  and overseas
debts properties liability ~inventories differences  subsidiaries Total

HEERR

Eff it AER EEH SHAWELF
REERRG RENZ BHER FEEN EREE 2ADKEA @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TRR Thn TER TEn TEn Thn Thn

At 1 January 2010 R-2-2E-F-F 724 @17) 3.817) 6,079) (o4 8,515 3,016
Exchange realignment EiAZ (52) (43 (140) (278) ) - (515)
(Credit) charge to profit or loss REZRG A NR 210 10 (401) (791) (168) 6,315 5175
Effect of change In tax rate hEgBvye 59 67 305 6 2 - 458
At 31 December 2010 RZ2-2f&

+zB=t+-8 (507) 789 (4,053) (7,142 (243 14,830 2,102
Exchange realignment ERRE 8 2 110 (386) 8 - (237)
(Orecit) charge to profi or loss REBRGIA)NB 165 - (296) 2483 218 9,347 11,972
Earnings distributed PRER = = - - - (8,515 (8,515)
At 31 December 2011 RZB-—-F

+zB=t-8 (334 (760) (4.239) (5,045) 3 15,662 5,302
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unutilised tax RBEHELEER  A&EBERBH
losses of approximately HK$302,328,000 (2010: HK$253,551,000) i 18 518 29 302,328,000 8 T (Z & — &
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has 1 258,551,000 Jt) Al FA 1E 3K 88 R 2K
been recognised of such tax losses due to the unpredictability of mA o -HBRKERER R EFRIR
future profit streams. The Hong Kong tax losses of approximately W R ERATBEEEREIELER
HK$49,977,000 (2010: HK$46,091,000) do not expire under the BHEE - REBEBBHRITBA  FEHE
current tax legislation in Hong Kong and all other tax losses will B 1E #49,977,0008 T (=& —F F !
expire from 2012 to 2016 (2010: 2011 to 2015). 46,091,000 JT) AR 2 EY - 0 BT B H fib B

BHEBER-Z——-—FZ=_F—7~53
=B ZFF . —F——FE2=-F—-1

FHH) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z——F+=-BA=+—HBLEE

27.DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

The unused tax losses will expire as follows:

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

Deferred taxation has been provided in full in respect of the
undistributed earnings of the Group’s PRC and overseas subsidiaries
arising since 1 January 2008 as the directors consider that such
earnings are estimated to be distributable in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax has been provided for in respect of the temporary
differences attributable to such profits amounting to approximately
HK$304,237,000 (2010: HK$296,610,000).

27 .9E #E i I8 (@)
KB AREEBERTHEEE

2011 2010
—g--%| =—T-%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FER
- 11,079

11,806 19,364
40,195 38,192
68,563 65,153
76,960 73,672
54,827 =
252,351 207,460

FRAEEZFEAEMBLARBE =S
ENF-B-—BURFEERDKER
ZEERBECELEZHERE RERAE
ERHZEEBEANMGTATER SR T A
EoRe AEECHREZS AN EE2
B B 2= 28 {F H 49304,237,0008 T (=&
— Z 1 296,610,000 JT) =2 IE i ¥ 18
B o

11

~

Ehy - - BUHBHBGFERE



-
-
o]

| LOg Woday [enuuy papwi] ABojouyoa ] -oig Aineag |eineN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z——F+=-BA=+—HBLEE

28.0PERATING LEASES
The Group as lessee

During the year, the Group made rental payments for office premises
under operating leases as follows:

Minimum lease payments BRIERAS TR
Contingent rental payments BFREE AR

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

28. & E M A

A 8 W fF B R A
0 K ORI 0 7 A O
EURBHATRS
2011 2010
—g--%| =—2-%%
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET
31,400 31,981
14,199 7,442
45,599 39,423

RBESHEEER AEERBETTH
HEEHANERTIZHMEHSGZAE
REAESEAENT:

2011 2010

—E-——F —E-ZF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FE R FE T

Within one year —F R 16,126 20,716
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ZFELF(BEEEMTE) 6,133 18,288
Over five years BB HF 128 946
22,387 39,950

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its leased properties. Leases are negotiated and rentals are
fixed for an average term of five years.

The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic
rentals, and do not include commitments for contingent rental
payable, if any, when the amounts are determined by applying a
percentage of turnover of the respective leases, as it is not possible
to determine in advance the amount of such contingent rentals.

REHPVPNENAEEE THEYSE
Xtz HEKEFMEAS R T
EFHEHTE-

THRAEREEEEEABES AR X
TERNBEERRAEXEa LERE
THEENZRRABSAEWA) R
EATAERLEEZSEIRAESE
8 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

B=E

28.0PERATING LEASES (continued)

29.

—E-—H+-A=t-HLHFE

The Group as lessor
Property

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$1,347,000
(2010: HK$2,863,000), net of outgoings of HK$71,000 (2010:
HK$195,000) for renting office premises. All of the properties held
have committed tenants for the next one to five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

Within one year
In the second year to fifth year inclusive

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition
of property, plant and equipment
contracted for but not provided
in the consolidated financial statements

28. & FHA
AEBMES
FBE

(%)

A

HREER L EYHELR 71,0008 (=
T —FF 1950008 L)% RE AR
BMzYEHRSWEB1,347,0008 T (=
T —-FF:2863,00087T) FFEEFHE

ZTABEREAHRAF HEFHN T

—EEZRHE

REEHEEER AEEEBEFEF
WeBEBREASARDOT :

2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FH T
—F R 181 618
F_EZFELF(BEEEMTE) - 516
181 1,134
29.8 AN & B
2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FH T
BRBRBLREE W5
REBREBEZ2ETHE
ARG EMERRE
BEZERABEX 11,984 10,160
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30.CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY N.EERTBEEALXRS
DISCLOSURES

120 During the year, the Group had significant transactions with related FR - AEECHEEREALTETERX
- parties, which are also deemed to be connected parties pursuant to X HABOALIRBBEIRAZS L
-l the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. MR REREA LT - FREZE A
% The significant transactions with these parties during the year are as TETZEARZNOT
2 follows:
g
3 (A) TRANSACTIONS A 25
g ()  CONNECTED PARTIES () EEA L
=1
o
é 2011 2010
5 —8--% —3-%%
g Name of company Nature of transactions HK$’000 HK$’'000
z DNEER REME TER TER
[
ég Companies controlled by individuals who
% collectively have joint control over the
2 Company’s ultimate holding company and are

also executive directors of the Company:
ERRFEHERANRAEIER A A FEER
FRAEEZMAANLFFEHRA -

BREMEH Rental income = 10
HeWm
HEEAALETERENHREEESELE  Rentalincome 16 14
HeWm
FEREEREHE Rental income - 10
HeWam
ERAES g Rental income - 1
HeWm
TREABRBERLQE Rental income - 15
HeWam
ALtTERBNIGE Rental income = 10
HeWm
EEBRERBLEROBERLA Rental income 16 -
HeWm
TERFREBAZERBERL S Rental expenses = 3,699
Hexd
Company controlled by the substantial
shareholder:
FERRIIEHRA
CA NB Limited Consultancy fee expenses 5,347 2,228
BEEER N
Individuals who collectively have joint control  Rental expenses 7,422 6,990
over the Company’s ultimate holding e
company and are also executive directors of
the Company

SRAFERAXQAANERRERLCIRAES
ARBEEZEAAANL
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30.CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY

DISCLOSURES (Continued)
(A) TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(1) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits EEEA
Post-employment benefits EIREFR
Equity-settled share-based payments  B% 7% 45 & B% 14 11 5%

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regarded to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

(B) OTHER ARRANGEMENTS
(i) Under a licensing agreement, a director of the Company
granted to Natural Beauty Cosmetics Company Limited
(“NB Taiwan”), a subsidiary incorporated and operated
in Taiwan, a license to use a skin test software from
1 January 1997 to 31 December 2011 for a nominal
consideration of New Taiwan dollars (“NT”) $1.

(i)  On 5 October 2001, NB Taiwan entered into two
separate licensing agreements with two directors of the
Company. Under the agreements, the directors agreed
to license a number of trademarks to NB Taiwan, on an
exclusive basis, for a nominal consideration of NT$1. The
licensing agreements will be effective till the expiry of the
registration of the respective trademarks which are in 2015
to 2019.

.BEREBEAEA LR Zw@m

(A) X5 (&)
() TEEEANEZ#IE

ESNIEEEEHMHER

FRZHMEmT
2011 2010
—g-—-%| =-T-%%
HK$°000 HK$’000
F# FET
20,583 21,105

52 68

25,352 -
45,987 21,173
EEREETHABZMET

SEZRENRERTEBEZRE
FMESSEE -

(B) H ft1 %=

(i)

REFTEHBR  F2RES
UsBAREHREHETHE
D1 AR EEEMmKL
ReEBEsHWBLARABAREL
HERROBRAIBDITERE
BENRHETR-hAtHF—
A—BRE=-2—-——-%+=A
ST-PRHEERAKERER
oz Fr g e

R=-ZEZE—F+HAEH BA
EZREHEARNTAMBESH L
MBI UTREGE RIEZ
ZHER EETRAEUREBAR
BHEMEIT BEBAREEMD
BEAZREREETRAEZH
AE - FAEHEREEEZ
AR =-E-REE=-Z—H
FRBAMABR -

=y
N
-

Ehy - - BUHBHBGFERE
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30.CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
DISCLOSURES (Continued)
(B) OTHER ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

On 10 November 2008, 12 January 2009 and 15 October
2009, Dr. TSAI, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng and Dr. SU Sh-
Hsyu (collectively the “Licensors”) and the Company

(the “Licensee”) entered into a license agreement and
subsequent amendments at a consideration of HK$10

for the royalty-free, fully paid-up, perpetual and non-
revocable licence and privilege throughout the world to
use the certain trade marks on exclusive use and non-
exclusive use basis.

On 10 November 2008 and 12 January 2009, the
Company (the “Licensor”) and Dr. TSAI (the “Licensee”)
entered into a license agreement and subsequent
amendments at a consideration of HK$10 for a non-
exclusive, royalty-free and perpetual licence (including
the right to grant sub-licences) to use certain trademarks
solely in relation to the operation of resorts and hotels, for
education related purposes and in the field of healthcare
and only in the jurisdiction in which such trademarks are
registered or have been applied for. The Licensee shall
offer the Company the opportunity to participate in any
new investments.

On 15 October 2009, Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu, Dr. SU Chien-
Cheng, Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu and Natural Beauty Magazine
Yang Chio Ling as the assignors and the Company as the
assignee entered into a trade mark assignment pursuant
to which the assignors assigned certain trade marks to the
assignee for a consideration of HK$10.

On 15 October 2009, Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu as the licensor
and the Company as the licensee entered into a licence
agreement pursuant to which the licensor granted to

the licensee a non-exclusive, royalty-free, fully paid-up,
perpetual and irrevocable license and privilege throughout
the world to use certain licensed trademarks only in
respect of the businesses conducted by the licensee for a
consideration of HK$10.

.BEREBEAEA LR Zw@m

(B) H b = 5k (&)

(ii)

(iv)

R=ZZFZNFE+-A+H =
ZENF-ATZBAR=FZF
ARE+ATEH BEL - %
EHELRHESTEEL (BB
[RERDEARRQT([FEEE
FDRTLFATEGEREERE
A 10BT 2 RERHEE
AEERE -BE - KAKR
THBEZFREREE B
RERZHWEZEBRRFBRE
BERAETER

RZZFZENFE+-ATHE=
ZENF-A+T=R F2FH
((EEFDEER L (ERE
FDFRTLFAEREREERE
R 10B T2 RERHFES
F REFEEAERKAM
NEFEEEIREFEZ
BR  DLARREEERN
KEE -BEHBRERRRE
HESTHERETEE  LE
TREGEEEMAE RFEM
ZEAEEEER -BERERA
BRTARBRESEIMHR
BIHA -

—EEANFE+ATHRB B
FEL -HEHBEL HIFH
8 £ K Natural Beauty Magazine
Yang Chio LingfE & H 58 A &2
KABMERERZBEAT LEEH
FORBLEEAUNREBIOET
mAZEALZE TEAE-

“EZAFETRATHRA BHE
FBETEAREIRADAME
RERERT LFTERS
B RELSHU10EB T 2R
B - OEREIRUFBR
REFEERE HE XX
MR T B E 2 R R
B -UREHREHHERES
FREXBERETRERD

e
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31.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 31.Zx A @ Z Bt #E 4k SR 3R &

THE COMPANY

A summary of the statement of financial position of the Company is

as follows:

Assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Available-for-sale investments
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Other receivables
Bank balances and cash

Liabilities
Other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves (Note)

aE
RMBLRB2RE
ATHEERE

FE Wy B B 2 B RROR
H ftb F& U Bk X
RITHEEREREE

& &
H 1t B 4 BR 3K
& A3 Mt /8 2 B ;K IH

EEFE

IR A R 1
B 7S
it 18 (Ff &)

RARBZHBERRBRBEENT :

2011 2010
—EB-—F —E-=ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fa T FBT
169,602 169,602
216,086 234,953
3,213 2,995

8,285 95,292
397,186 502,842
2,756 3,770
34,951 60,865
37,707 64,635
359,479 438,207
200,210 200,210
159,269 237,997
359,479 438,207

123
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31. 78 2 8] 2 B 7 AR R R 3R ()

RE M RKMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-Z-——+ZHA=+—HLEE
31.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)
Note:
At 1 January 2010 R=-ZE—ZF—H—H
Loss for the year KEEEIBE
Dividends recognised as distribution BRDIRZ KA
At 31 December 2010 R=ZE-—ZF+=-HF=+—H
Profit for the year AEE R A
Recognition of equity-settled share based BRABRAREERMD IR

32.

payments

BR DK ZRF

Dividends recognised as distribution

At 31 December 2011 R-—ZE——H+=-A=+—8H

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from the prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-backs or issue of new debt.

B &F -
Share
Share option Retained

premium reserve profits Total
RHEE RRERE & 8% A Bt
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
F& T FERT T T FE T
41,016 - 359,358 400,374
- - (12,219) (12,219)
- - (150,158) (150,158)
41,016 - 196,981 237,997
- - 51,286 51,286
- 30,154 - 30,154
- - (160,168) (160,168)
41,016 30,154 88,099 159,269

2.BEANE g E
AEBE Eﬁ$ uﬁﬁ$%EﬁT§

BEEURHEER Y EBTZEBRR
APERERZFAAZTHREALR - K
SEEERBEEFHERE-

FEBEACRBEBERERREEEY
URADNBDERANELEDS BECEH
TRA RERRERA -

ARABESR¥FEEEERNELS
B-EREBAEF-R EFTELTEE
ERAREREAHBAZAR REE
EZEBR AEEBEBRGRA - 3
THRORBEROSBITHER 2H
X FPHHBREELER -
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33.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

33a.Categories of financial instruments

3B.£F T A
33a.2 @ T 2R

125

2011 2010 o

—E——F —E-EF 2

HK$’000 HK$000 e

FTET Figx 3

o

Financial assets TRMEE g
Loans and receivables B R R EWER R ;j
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BRERRERASZEEY 604,788 610,761 L
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE = - NP\%
.

Financial liabilities tHMEE il
Amortised cost 85 AR 102,773 97,807 h

33b.Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-
sale investments, trade and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and trade and other payables. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.

The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to bank balances due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rates. It is also exposed to fair
value interest rate risk in relation to the short-term bank
deposits. The directors of the Company consider the
Group’s exposure to the interest rate risk is not significant
as interest bearing bank balances are within a short
maturity period.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy in relation to interest rate risks. The
directors of the Company will continuously monitor interest
rate fluctuation and will consider hedging interest rate risk
should the need arise.

B.UBEBREEEERKE

AEETZERIAGEAIMEE
RE-BEERHEMEREKEN BIE
RETER RTEFURESR
HEMNRR HEERIT A2
BFREAMENRE RESEMT
EERzERRBEZSERRZK
RENTN EEEEEREEZEZ
ZEk BREREARRDNEERE
i

45 & Bz

() FZEE
AEBERBTMESAERFEEM
ERBRTEFTAZSEHERER
ERERE AT HREBHRTRE
RAEAZSAFEMNERAR KA
AEBERAE AKEZFNER
B ARER REBFERIT
HEEREHREE-

7 8 18 31 5 3 4 5 ) 2 L B 3R
BEMAEYHEE AT
EEGSEERAERE B
B E B E R E YRR

a0 o
o
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33.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
33b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for the bank
balances at the reporting date. For bank balances, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of balances
at the end of the reporting date were outstanding for the
whole year. 20 basis points increase and 5 basis points
decrease (2010: 20 basis points increase and 5 basis
points decrease) are used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 20 basis points higher/5 basis
points lower (2010: 20 basis points higher/5 basis points
lower) and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2011 would increase by HK$1,117,000/decrease by
HK$279,000 (2010: increase by HK$1,151,000/decrease
by HK$288,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its bank balances.

Currency risk
The Group has bank deposits denominated in foreign
currency which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Management considers that the Group is not exposed

to significant foreign currency risk as the majority of its
transactions are either denominated in functional currency
of the Group’s subsidiaries or in USD. Since USD is
pegged to HKD, the foreign currency risk is minimal.

33.3%

33b

T B @)
PREAREERERKE@E

i 45 & Bz (%)

(i

(i)

R F 7 bz (%)
UTHBREIHNDRERTEER
BEAMZANREARETE - $IRIT
BEmMs 2N DERBEHESE
FRAzHEFsHESFEAMGBHR -
BEREEASABABNRER
B 5% A 2 20 18 & B 48 0 Je 5 {6 & 3
BO(ZE-FF 20 @EHE M
KO8 B D) I R E I R X
ZRBEBERH 2Tt

fiti 7 2= 42 020 B & BB A 58 &
B(ZB—TF  20AE %
DEEER MEMESEHEST TR
rAEEMBE-_ZE——1+=A8

St-BLEFEEZRBERENS
# 401,117,000 5% 7t/ 8 4 279,000
Br(ZZ—FF 101,151,000
% 7T, 8 4 288,00038 7T) © E E R
BAEEMRETEFTEEZ2FEE

a8 o
S

B % E
REBEHFUIINETIET S A E B X
SHERBZBRTER -

G E SN H P BOR - AT
EEEEFIERRYSNERR
ZRHHERIIERR -

EEERD ARFAKEERBIR
SUXEENBAR ZHEEE R
EnME HAKRELEE RIME
BB o R STEE T -
SERBED -
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33.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
33b.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk
As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which may cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arisen from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

At 31 December 2011, the five largest trade receivable
balances accounted for approximately 19% (2010: 28%) of
the trade receivables and the largest trade receivables balance
was approximately 8% (2010: 12%) of the Group’s total trade
receivables.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations are mainly PRC excluding Hong Kong, which
accounted for 69% (31 December 2010: 47%), and Taiwan,
which accounted for 28% (31 December 2010: 49%) of the
trade receivables as at 31 December 2011.

33.€ @ T B )
BL.UKEABREEEERBERE

= E R
RZE——F+ZA=+—H &
EERTNATREBTESEME
s EEECREEERRIIER
GEUBERRBERIR2EEERE
REMEEREE ASERKE
ERE AEEEEECEE -4
AE EEETEERE
ERETHMEZRRF BRRE
EEBAPEKZEFTER - i
AEEFERSHREHEEE AR
BRESEH 2 KESE BR
BT U E R IEE R AR S
Beplt RARESERE K&
BzEERBRE KIERD -

hRBEEZ2FERRER  EEAS
AT RAEREREETREES
TREFEFRZET -

R—-ZE——F+=-A=+—H &
RESERRRERNVIEESEW
RARN19% (ZZE—FF 1 28%) »
MK EE 5 E W R X+ & KB
BERAOGEAEEE S EWERALE
HB8H(ZE—FF 1 12%) °

R=-ZZTE——F+=-F=+—8"

rEERGFHEAI 2 EERRE
EEFRPEREGEBERIMNGEE
SEWERRON(ZE—ZFF+ =
B=+—HB:47%) K& &BLEE S
EWER28% (ZE—ZFEFE+ =4
=+ —H:49%) °

=y
N
~
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

33b.

33c.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
The Group relies on its operating cash flows as a significant
source of liquidity.

The Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its trade and
other payables falls within 30 to 90 days as at 31 December
2010 and 2011.

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

33.€ @ T B )

33b.

33c.

MBEEREBEEEERBEEX®E

B & £ JE
EERBDESRARIE  AEEE
ERGEREEERAREZRER
REZEBYKF UAFXEEHEE
REESRBRERERERD
E-AERRBEARERSREF
REIBRDESHRIEF

R-ZE-—ZEER-_ZE——F+ZH
=t+t-B AEFEZREMEN
RARZBTAYEE AN FI0E0
E|o

ATE
TREERERMEEATERRE
BEMACEBERN  UABRBALSR

EDNEE-

ESRR REAUBHRRZEH
BAARZEMEEREREER
HEREAFEMES-
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34.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

34.

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2010 and

2011 are as follows:

Name of company

DEER

Shanghai Natural Beauty
Cosmetics Company Limited*

LBEAREERERAE"

Shanghai Natural Beauty Sanlian
Cosmetics Company Limited

LBARX=BEIERAERDT

Shanghai Natural Beauty Qingbo
Cosmetics Company Limited

LBARXBERLERERDLT

Shanghai Natural Beauty Fansi
Jewellery Company Limited
LEEAZREKRERRLA

Xi An Natural Beauty Mingyu
Cosmetics Company Limited

ARERZAFCHREREELA

Qingdao Natural Beauty Oraments
Company Limited
EEEAXNMERDH

Chengdu Natural Beauty Cosmetics
Company Limited
REEAECHRBERAA

Hainan Natural Beauty Cosmetics
Company Limited
BEAARZHRERAF

Shenzhen Natural Beauty Cosmetics
Company Limited
FITERAELRRERAF

Wauhan Natural Beauty Cutural
Development Company Limited

HEARXBXCBREERAF

Place of
incorporation
and operations

B &
BEwEY

The PRC
R K

The PRC
EIKE

The PRC
K

The PRC
K

The PRC
R K

The PRC

REIARRE

The PRC
B K

The PRC
R EKE

The PRC

FE AR

The PRC
R EIKE

Registered
capital/

issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital

HERERBRT
RBREBRA

US$29,980,000
3 £29,980,0007T

RMB8,000,000
A [ #:8,000,000 7

RMB5,000,000

A & #5,000,000 7T

RMB500,000
A K #500,000 7T

RMB3,000,000
A B #:3,000,000 7

RMB4,000,000

A &% 4,000,000 7T

RMB2,500,000
A R #2,500,000 T

RMB2,500,000
A B 2,500,000 7T

RMB4,000,000

A [ # 4,000,000 7T

RMB2,500,000
A #2,500,000 7

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued capital
held by the
Company

and its
subsidiaries

ARRREMBEAR

FEEBRTRAE
[ERER ]

100%

100%

100%

(note)

(H &%)

100%

(note)

(M &)

100%

100%

90%

(note)

(M &%)

By & 2 &

15

R-F-—ZER-T——F+=A

=+t—-B FARAMBLAFEUT :

Attributable
to the Group

AEBEE

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

90%

Principal activity

TEXEH

Production and sale of skin care
and beauty products
LEERBERBREZRER

Wholesale and retail of skin care
and beauty products; provision of
beauty treatments
HBEREZEEERERER:
RitzrEE

Wholesale and retail of skin care
and beauty products

HERFEEBEREZRER

Sale of jewellery, craftwork, adornment,

leather and horologe
HERE TER £HhR-
RER#E®

Sale of skin care and beauty products

and related instruments; provision of

skin care and beauty consulting
HEEBERZREMREY
BN RUEBEEEREIRES

Sale of skin care and beauty products
and adornment

HEEBERXRERRENA

Sale of skin care and beauty
products; provision of beauty
treatments and skin care and
beauty consulting and training

HERBBEREZAER:
RUXFEEANEBEUR
ZABEARE

Sale of skin care and beauty products;
provision of beauty treatments and
beauty consulting and training

HEEBERZFEM:

RHEREEALRBAREY

Sale of cosmetic products and provision of

beauty treatments
HEFHERMRRHEITER

Sale of cosmetic products and provision of

beauty treatments
HEFHERMRRHEEITER
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZ_Z-——H+-A=1+T—-HLEHFE

34.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of company

DEER

Beijing Natural Beauty Cosmetics
Company Limited
TREAXCEGRERAA

Suzhou Natural Beauty Cosmetics
Company Limited
BNEAZRRBERAA

LEEARXERLEERERAH

Shanghai Natural Beauty Fuli Cosmetics
Company Limited (Formerly known as
Shanghai Full-Beauty Cosmetics
Company Limited)*

LBAREEECHERERAT
(AIBLEBERHERERAT)"

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Company
Limited (Formerly known as Natural
Beauty Cosmetics Company Limited)

BAXENMEROPERADF
(FIBEREHRRBBRAR)

Tian Ran Mei Bio-Technology Company
Limited
AREENNEROBERAA

Huei Yao Investment
Company Limited
ERRERBERAF
Ray-Sen Medical Cosmetics
Company Limited
HREBEXANELERSG
BRAH

Belem Holdings Sdn. Bhd.

Billion Synergy Sdn. Bhd.

Place of
incorporation
and operations

B &
BEHEY

The PRC
REI K

The PRC
AR

The PRC
K

The PRC
K

Taiwan

a8

Taiwan

&8

Taiwan

=) |

Taiwan

e

Malaysia
SRAR

Malaysia
BRADR

Registered
capital/

issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital

HERERBRT
RBREBRA

RMB20,000,000
A R % 20,000,000 7

RMB1,200,000
A R #1,200,000 T

RMB500,000
A B #500,000 7

US$1,480,000
%41480,0007T

NT$201,000,000
3 & 201,000,000 7

NT$32,000,000
3 & #32,000,000 7

NT$122,043,420
3 A #122,043,420 T

NT$50,000,000
3 & 50,000,000 7T

MYR68,609,858

Class B shares
BRERARE
68,609,858 1T
MYR10,000

Class A shares

AR 55 3R 7 22 4510000 7T

MYR2
BREZH2R

Proportion of
nominal value

of issued capital
held by the
Company

and its

subsidiaries
ARARAREMBAR
FREBTRA
EE Ll

100%

(note)

(Bt E)

100%

100%

100%

(note)

(M &%)

100%

94%

100%

100%

Attributable
to the Group

EEBEE

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

94%

100%

100%

34./f B A =] 5 15 @)

Principal activity

TEEH

Sale of cosmetic products and provision of
beauty treatments
HEFHERRREXAERE

Sale of skin care and beauty products and
related instruments

HEEERXRERRABESEY

Wholesale and retail of skin care and beauty
products
HBEREEEEREZFER

Production and sale of skin care
and beauty products
EERHEEEEREREM

Production and sale of skin care
and beauty products
EERKEEEREREMR

Production and sale of skin care
and beauty products
EERBEREBRERER

Investment holding

REEZR

Provision of beauty consutting
and training

REXFHRARE

Investment holding

REZR

Wholesale of skin care and
beauty products
HBEEEREZFER
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34.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)  34.[ff B A 7] 5% 15 (&)

Proportion of
nominal value

Registered of issued capital
capital/ held by the
Place of issued and fully Company
incorporation paid ordinary and its Attributable
Name of company and operations share capital subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
APAREMEAA
A R AMELR/CEAT FREBTRE
NAER TEHY RBREBRE EELH AEBMENL TEEH
Ice Crystal Management Limited British Virgin Islands US$52,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
KREBERDA (‘BVI) % £52,0007T RELZR
REEBRES
(ZE£AR
BB
Great Glamour Company Limited BVI US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
KBATRHE % 4500007 REZR
Next Success International Limited BVI US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
EEAETHE £€100% REER
Fortune Investment Global Limited BVI US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
EEERMHE % £50,0007T RELZR
Natural Beauty Bio-Technology (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Sale of cosmetic products and provision of
Company Limited 58 78 #10,000 7T beauty treatments
BAZEVMRE(BR)ERAT HEXHERRRERETER
Natural Beauty Bio-Technology (Macao) Macau MOP25,000 100% 100% Sale of cosmetic products and
Company Limited P! 8 P9 % 25,000 7T provision of beauty treatments
HAZEYRFE(RMERAH HEFHERMRRHEITER
Natural Beauty China Holding Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000 100% 100% Investment holding
BAZHEZRERAA B 7 200,000 T REZR
Shanghai Natural Beauty The PRC US$2,600,000 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of health
Bio-Med Company Limited* K FE %£42600,0007T supplement
LEEARZENRE RERHERERM
BRAR
LBERZERURRERLA The PRC RMB6,000,000 100% 100% Beauty consulting; wholesale and retall
B A BE A R #6,000,0007T of skin care and beauty products
AR MBREEESE
RERER
Spring Perfect Biomedical Taiwan NT$16,500,000 - - Provision of professional medical care
Company Limited Al # & 16,500,000 7T (note) products
EEEREBROARAR (Ff 55) HESXEREEER
note: The subsidiary was deregistered during the year ended 31 December 2011, M ZMBLARREE=-Z——F+=A

* The subsidiary is foreign investment enterprise with limit liability in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities outstanding
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

=t+t-BRLFECHUEGEM-

* ZHBARATEAEREENIERE-

REKRIFREMEGE SEME QA
EENEREEEREES -

"y
W
-

Ehy - - BUHBHBGFERE
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Financial Summary

B %5 B2

RESULTS

REVENUE

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

A

B Bt A & A

A X

AEEER

DN ¥
i A (E8)

ARBHEBA
FERES

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

s
G

£
\[
/!
T

Ir
L

ARRERA
FE 15 #E 35

FERES

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—-HLFE

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
“E2E2tF “2F\F ZFTNF —F-FF “FT-——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FExT FEx FET FTEx TERT
450,147 592,701 538,092 485,389 591,295
208,029 308,477 186,753 75,848 173,647
(29,248) (69,898) (42,830) (45,138) (58,475)
178,781 238,579 143,923 30,710 115,172
178,707 238,477 149,636 31,308 115,123
74 102 (5,713) (593) 49
178,781 238,579 143,923 30,710 115,172
pr.d ==
EEREE
At 31 December
R+=BA=+-H

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
“EEtF “2F\F ZFTNF —F-FF “F-——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FExT FEx FET FEx TERT
1,032,314 1,026,226 999,319 940,931 958,626
(116,663) (169,819) (130,491) (158,297) (170,441)
915,651 856,407 868,828 782,634 788,185
909,626 849,960 868,082 782,487 788,004
6,025 6,447 746 147 181
915,651 856,407 868,828 782,634 788,185
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